




















 

 

                                                      DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

 

To, 

 

The Members, 

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited  

 

Your Directors are pleased to present the Company’s 19th Annual Report together 

with the report of the statutory auditors and the audited financial statements of 

the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

Global economic overview 

 

The current global economy is traversing through a perfect storm of geopolitical 

tensions, climate emergency, cost of living crisis, food and nutrition security 

concern as well as inadequate livelihood opportunities. Amidst these adversities, 

rapid technological advancements including AI are redefining the future.  

 

In such a turbulent world, Indian economy has emerged as an inspiring lighthouse 

of growth. The standout performance as the world’s fastest growing major 

economy with a consistent 7% plus GDP growth rate over the last few years. The 

synergy of India’s large market, favorable demographics, rising disposable incomes, 

technological prowess and vibrant entrepreneurship will continue to power growth 

in the foreseeable future. 

 

India  has  a  large  automotive  market,  comprising  annual  production  of  26 million 

vehicles  as  of  FY  2023  (excluding  electric  rickshaws). It is central to India’s 

manufacturing sector and the overall economy, contributing 35% to the 

manufacturing GDP and 5 -6% to the overall GDP in FY 2023. Further, the Indian 

government envisions improving contribution of the automotive industry to reach 

40% of the manufacturing GDP by FY 2026.  

 

Despite having large two wheeler (2W) and four wheeler passenger vehicles (4W - 

Passenger Vehicle) markets, India sees limited penetration, indicating a solid 

backdrop for medium to long -term volume growth. 

 

Last financial year also marked a milestone in our Groups journey. Our holding 

Company Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (PVSL) launched a successful IPO 

and became a listed Company in the month of March, 2024. 

 

 



 

 

Business Operational Review 

 

Key highlights of financial performance of your Company for the financial year 

2023-24 are provided below: 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 

   Standalone Performance 

 

During the year under review, the revenue from operation were at Rs. 

2827.46 million as against Rs. 2534.17 million in the previous year, 

recording an increase of 11.57%. The Profit Before Tax was recorded at Rs. 

119.99 million in the current year as against Rs. 102.41 million in the 

previous year, recording an increase of 17.17%. 

 

     FINANCIAL SUMMARY & HIGHLIGHTS  

 

                                                  (In INR millions, except earnings per share data) 

 

Particulars 
FY 2024 

 

FY 2023 

 

Net Revenue from Operations 2827.46 2534.17 

Other Income 35.55 5.09 

Total Revenue 2863.01 2539.26 

Employee benefit expenses 128.98 110.52 

Finance costs 39.15 29.62 

Depreciation and amortization 

expenses 

46.77 41.48 

All other expenses 2528.12 2255.23 

Total Expenses 2743.02 2436.85 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 119.99 102.41 

Tax Expense: 

Current Tax  

Deferred Tax 

 

26.60 

2.12 

 

29.40 

(3.78) 

Profit / (Loss) after Tax 91.27 76.79 

Earnings per equity share(in Rs)  

                                              

Basic : 

Diluted : 

 

 

1,782.34 

1,782.34 

 

 

1,492.73 

1,492.73 

 



 

 

 

2. DEEMED PUBLIC COMPANY STATUS 

 

As per the Proviso to Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013 a company which is 

a subsidiary of a company, not being a private company, shall be deemed to be 

public company for the purposes of the Companies Act, 2013 even where such 

subsidiary company continues to be a private company in its articles. 

 

The holding Company Popular Vehicles and Services Limited has converted to a 

Public Company on 10th July 2018. Being a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Popular 

Vehicles and Services Limited, our Company became a Deemed Public Company as 

per the Proviso to Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

However, our Company has continued to be a Private Limited Company as per the 

Articles of Association of the Company. 

 

Certain provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 becomes applicable to the Company being a subsidiary of 

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited which became a listed company from 19th 

March 2024. 

 

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES  

 

The Board of Directors of your company, has decided not to transfer any 

amount to the Reserves for the year under review.  

 

4. DIVIDEND 

 

The board of directors of your company is pleased to recommend a dividend of 

Rs.104 per equity shares of face value of Rs. 100 each aggregating to Rs.5.31 

million, payable to those shareholders whose name appear in the register of 

members as on the record date 

 

In view of the changes made under the Income-tax Act, 1961, by the Finance Act, 

2020, dividends paid or distributed by the Company shall be taxable in the 

hands of the Shareholders. The Company shall, accordingly, make the payment 

of the final Dividend after deduction of tax at source. 

 

Dividend payout is in accordance with the Dividend distribution policy of the 

company 

 

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 



 

 

 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the 

year under review.  

 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

There have been no material changes and commitments which affect the 

financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the 

financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this 

report.  

 

7.  CAPITAL & DEBT STRUCTURE  

 

During the financial year under review, there is no change in the Authorized and 

Paid up Share Capital of the Company.  

 

As on 31st March, 2024, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 

65,00,000/- (Sixty five lakh only) comprising of 60,000(sixty thousand) Equity 

Shares of Rs.100/- each and 5000 (five thousand) Redeemable Preference 

Shares of Rs. 100/- each. 

 

As on 31st March, 2024, the paid-up share capital of the Company  stands at Rs. 

51,03,400/- (Fifty one lakh three thousand four hundred only) comprising of 

51,034 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid-up. 

 

8. CREDIT RATING 

 

During the financial year under review, India Ratings and Research Private 

Limited has affirmed the rating with IND BBB /Stable outlook for Term loan, 

IND BBB/Stable /IND A3+for fund-based limits, IND A3 + for Non-fund-based 

limits as per the letter dated 03rd April 2024 

 

9. UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF 

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 

IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the IEPF 

Rules”), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the 

Company to the IEPF; established by the Government of India, after completion 

of seven years. Further, according to the IEPF Rules, the shares on which 

dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven 



 

 

consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account of the 

IEPF Authority. 

 

However, your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a 

period of seven years in Unpaid Dividend Account. Therefore, there were no 

funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and 

Protection fund (IEPF) and no amount is lying in Unpaid Dividend account of the 

Company 

 

10. MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

a) Board of Directors 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2024 are as follows: 

 

Name of the director          Designation                   DIN  

Mr.Naveen Philip Director 00018827 

Mr.John K Paul Director 00016513 

Mr.Francis K Paul Director 00018825 

Mr.Thomas A Karedan Director 08770690 

Mr.Jyothish    

Madhavanpillai 

Director 08770679 

 

          None of the directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of    

the Act. 

 

i) Appointment  

 

There was no appointment of directors during the period under review. 

 

ii) Resignation  

 

There was no resignation of directors during the period under review. 

 

iii) Retirement by rotation  

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 

Francis K Paul (DIN 00018825) retires by rotation at the forthcoming 

Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment. 

 



 

 

b)    Key Managerial Personnel 

 

Provisions of section 203(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply to the 

Company. 

 

c) Independent directors  

 

As per Rule 4 sub rule 2 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of 

Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is not required to appoint Independent 

Directors. 

 

d) Declaration by Independent Directors 

 

As per Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 the criteria of independence 

laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations,2015 is not applicable to the company. 

 

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & ITS COMMITEES  

 

a) Board meetings  

 

The Board of Directors met 7(Seven) times during the financial year ended 

March 31, 2024 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and rules made thereunder. The details of the same are as mentioned under:- 

 

                   

Date of 

Meeting                               

Attendance of Directors 

 Mr.Naveen 

Philip 

Mr.John 

K Paul 

Mr.Francis 

K Paul 

Mr.Thomas 

Karedan  

Mr.Jyothish 

Madhavan 

Pillai 

25.04.20

23 

     

23.05.20

23 

     

10.07.20

23 

     

26.09.20

23 

     

18.01.202

4 

     



 

 

02.03.20

24 

     

25.03.20

24 

     

 

b) Finance and Authorisation Committee 

 

The Company also has a Finance and Authorisation Committee (sub-

committee) which is constituted with Mr.Naveen Philip 

(Chairman),Mr.Francis K Paul, Mr.Thomas Karedan, and  Mr. Jyothish 

Madhvan Pillai Directors as members. 

 

During the Financial Year 2023-24 the Company has held 2(two) meetings 

of the Finance and Authorisation Committee the details of the same are as 

mentioned under:- 

 

                   

Date of 

Meeting                               

Attendance of Directors 

 Mr.Naveen 

Philip 

Mr.Francis 

K Paul 

Mr.Thomas 

Karedan  

Mr.Jyothish 

Madhavan 

Pillai 

19.04.202

3 

    

21.08.202

3 

    

 

 

12. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION  

 

There are no directors, key managerial personnel or other employees who 

are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under section 

197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment 

Rules,2016. 

 

13. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

In terms of clause(c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 read with sub-section (5) 

of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby state and 

confirm that— 

 



 

 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting 

standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures; 

 

b) Such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently 

and  the Directors made judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 

the company as at 31st March 2024 and of the profit of the company for 

that year; 

 

c) Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d) The Annual Accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going 

concern basis. 

 

e) Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

operating effectively. 

 

  

14. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS. 

 

  The Company’s Internal Control Systems are commensurate with the nature 

of its business and the size and complexity of its operations. These are 

routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as Internal Auditors. 

Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to 

the Board. 

 

15. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS 

 

    During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors has not reported to the 

Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any instances of 

fraud committed against the Company by its Officers or employees. 

 

16. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 

During the financial year under report the Company has not entered into or 

invested in any new Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates. The details of 

the Holding and Subsidiary Companies are given below:- 



 

 

 

Sl. 

No. 
Name of the Company 

Holding/ 

Subsidiary/ 

Associate 

Applicable 

Section 

1 Popular Vehicles and Services 

Limited 

Holding Company 2 (46) 

 

     

17. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to 

time, the Company is not required to maintain Cost Records under said Rules. 

 

18. DEPOSITS 

 

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits and, as such no amount 

on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on 

the date of the Balance Sheet. Thus no particulars are reported as required 

under Rule 8(5)(v) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

19. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES 

 

       The details of Investments, Loans, Guarantees and Securities have been 

disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

 

20. UNSECURED LOANS,BORROWINGS AND GUARANTEES  

 

As on 31st March 2024, the Company has the following outstanding loans from 

its Directors: 

                                                                                            (Rs. In millions)  

Name of Directors Amount Outstanding 

Mr. John K Paul 1.20 

Mr. Naveen Philip 14.70 

 

 

21.  PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 

PARTIES 

 

       The transactions with related parties are in compliance with the 

provisions contained in Section 188(1) of the Act read with Rule 15 of the 



 

 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Information  

on material transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 

134(3)(h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules,  2014 are given in Annexure-A in Form AOC-2 and the same forms 

part of this report. 

 

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

   As per section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company having net 

worth of rupees five hundred crores or more, or turnover of rupees one 

thousand crores or more, or net profit of rupees five crores or more during the 

immediately preceding financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) Committee and spent at least 2 percentage of the average 

net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding 

financial years for CSR activities.  

 

The Board of Directors at  their meeting held on 30th August, 2021 has approved 

and adopted the CSR Policy.  

 

 The Company has initiated activities in accordance with the said Policy , the 

details of which have been mentioned in “ANNEXURE B ” which forms part of 

this Report. 

 

21.   CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (As required under section 134(3)(m)of 

Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014) 

 

The company uses power saving lighting equipment’s for its office and 

workshop and saves power wherever there is scope for energy saving. 

 

No technology absorption has taken place during the year under 

consideration.  

 

There was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year. 

 

23. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, access, monitor and 

mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by 

the business and functions are systematically addressed through 

mitigating actions on a continuous basis. 



 

 

 

24. VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

During financial under review the Company does not meet the criteria specified 

under section 177 (9) of the Companies Act 2013 so there is no requirement to 

form a vigil mechanism or whistle blower policy. 

 

 

25. MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES/REGULATORS 

  

         During the financial year under review, there were no material orders 

passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 

status and company’s operations in future. 

 

26. STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

Mr. A.S. Narayanamoorthy, Chartered Accountant (Membership No. 13980) was 

appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company at the 14th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company held on 25th September, 2019 for a term of 5 

consecutive years, till the conclusion of the 19th Annual General Meeting. 

 

However, the Board of Directors has proposed to appoint M/s. R. G. N. Price & 

Co., Chartered Accountants as the statutory Auditor of the company, pursuant 

to section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is subject to shareholder approval 

on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of 

Directors of the Company. 

 

27. STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

The Statutory Auditors’ in their Report for the financial year ending 31st March, 

2024 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. 

 

28. SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has appointed 

Mr. M.C. Sajumon, Practicing Company Secretary, Kochi as Secretarial Auditor to 

conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31st 

March, 2024. The secretarial auditor's report does not contain any 

qualifications reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer. 

 

29. INTERNAL AUDIT 

 



 

 

Company has established a full-fledged internal audit team headed by Mr. 

Sojan Chacko, a qualified Chartered Accountant. Audit team conducts 

regular reviews of the business process, operations and financial 

transactions to ensure adequacy and existence of effective control 

systems; investigate probable risks, deviations, fraud or misappropriations. 

 

30. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND 

SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 

 

In terms of Section 118(10) of the Act, the Company is complying with the 

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

(ICSI) with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings and 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

31. ANNUAL  RETURN 

         

       The Company does not have a functional website so the requirement of 

hosting annual return in the website is not applicable. 

 

 

32.  HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 

 

Human Resource Department plays a pivotal role in achieving 

organizational excellence. Your Company constantly strives to develop 

quality human resources, to meet the challenges of competitive business 

environment and to build critical capabilities in achieving the Company’s 

objectives and goals. The Company is continuously renewing and updating 

the knowledge and skill of its employees at all levels through training and 

development. 

 

      As on 31st March, 2024, the Company had a total head count of 373 

employees, an increase of 23 employees over the previous year. Your 

Company takes significant efforts on employee development by imparting 

training to employees at various levels. 

 

 

33. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

The Company has constituted an Internal Committee as required under the 

said Act to take necessary preventive actions as may be possible and also 

to carry out redressal of complaints, if any, on sexual harassment and for 



 

 

matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. Summary of sexual 

harassment complaints received and disposed of during the financial year 

2023-24 are as follows: 

 

                No of complaints pending at the beginning of the year: 0 

                No of complaints received : 0 

                No of complaints disposed off   : 0 

                Number of cases pending at the end of the year:0 

 

       The Committee has submitted the Annual Report on POSH to the Company and 

the Board of Directors took note of the same at their meeting dated 25th 

March,2024. The report has also been submitted to the District Officer, 

pursuant to Section 21 of the POSH Act, 2013. 

 

34. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 

During the year under review, the company enjoyed cordial relationship 

with workers and employees at all levels and the Directors thank all the 

employees for their continued support, co-operation and valuable 

contributions. 

 

 

35. DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE APPLICATION AS MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING IS 

PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE (IBC), 2016 DURING 

THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

          Not applicable 

 

36. DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNTS OF THE 

VALUATION EXECUTED AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE 

VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 

INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THERE OF 

 

           Not applicable 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 























A.S.NARAYANAMOORTHY
CHARTERED ACCOT-]NTANT

Phone 0484-23 r9167

03t2024

UDIN: 240139808KFTJX7080

C 163. Panampally Nagar,
Cochin - 682 036.

t 5.05.2024

INDEPI]NDI]N1' AUDIT'OR'S REPOR'T TO 1'HE MEMBERS OF POPULAR AUTO DEALERS
PRIVATE LIMITED, COCHIN

Report on the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the accotnpan!ing Standalonc linancial statenrents of Popular Auto Dealers Private

Limited. ("the Compan!"Iwhich corrpriscs the []alance Sheet as at 3l'' March 2024, Ihe Statement of
Prollt and Loss and Statement ot caslr llorvs lbr tlrc \ear then ended. Statemenl of Changes in Equity and

notes to the financial statements. including a summary of malerial accounling policies and other

explanatory information.

ln my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the

atbresaid standalone financial statements give the intbrmation required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and fhir view in contbrrnity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

lndia. of the state ol'atIairs of the Company as at i l'r March 2024, and PROFIT, Changes in Equity and its

cash flows fbr the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance i'vith the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specitied under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act. 2013. M1' responsibilitics Ll'rder thosc Standards are funher described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities lbr the Audit oftlrc'Financial Statements section olmy repon. I am independent

ofthe Conrpanl in accordance rvith the ( ode ot'llthics issucd b,\ the lnstilute o1'Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethrcal requirements that arc relevant to my audit ofthe financial statements under

the provisions ofthe Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules there under, and I have fulfilled my other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirerrents and the Code of Ethics. I believe that the audil

evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

A



lnformation other than the Financial Statements nnd Auditors Report thereon

'fhe Company's Board ol'Directors are responsihlc lirr the lntbrrnation other than the tlnancial statements

and auditor's report lhcreon.'l he said int'orrralion cornprise.s the intbrrnation included in the Directors

Repon (Other intbrnration). but docs not inclLrdc thc llnarrcial slatements and my audit repon thereon. The

Other Information is expected to be rnade availabl!' lt; rne afier the date of lhis auditors' repon.

My opinion on the l'inancial statenrents does not corer llre other intbrmation and Iwill not express any

tbrm of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with my audit of the flnancial statements. my responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available. and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the tinancial statemenls or my knowledge obtained in the audit, otherwise

appear to be materially misstated.

Responsibility of Management and Thosc Chargetl *ith (iovernance for the Standalone Financial
Slatements

The Company's Board ol' Directors are responsiblc lbr the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Ac1. 2013 (-the Act") with respect to thc prcparation of these standalone llnancial statements

that give a true and thir view of the financial position. tinancial performance and cash flows of the

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the

accounting Standards specitied under section 133 olthe Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance

ol' adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of lhe assets

of the Company and for preventing and detecting tiauds and other irregularities; selection and application

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

design. implemenlation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

preparation and presentation of the tinancial slatenrcnt that give a true and lair view and are free from

material misstatement. whether due to tiaud or crror.

ln preparing thc t'inancial statcnlcnls. nranagenrcnt is lcsponsible tbr assessing the Company-'s ability to
continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. nlattcr:i related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless managenrenl !'ilhcr intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations. or has no realistic alternative bul to do s().

Those Board of Directors are also responsible lor overseeing the company's financial reporting process,

When I read the other information. if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required

to communicate the matter to lhose charged ir ith govcrnance.



Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the l-inancial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assuranc!- about rvhether the financial statements as a whole are free
lrom material misstatement, whether due to liaud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatemenl when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material il. individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably
be expected to inlluence the economic decisions ol users laken on the basis olthese tlnancial statements.

As pan ol'an audit in accordance sith SAs. I crcrcise proli:ssional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentity and assess the risks of material misstatement olthe financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perlbrm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficienl and appropriate to provide a basis tbr my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting tiom tiaud is higher than fbr one resulting lrom error, as fraud may involve
collusion. I'orgerl'. intentional omissions. rn isre presentations. or the override ofinlernal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audil in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, I am

also responsible lor expressing my opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial
controls syslem in place and the operating et]ecliveness olsLrch controls.

Evaluate the' appropriatr"'ness ol'accourrting policic's uscd and thc reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures nrade b.l nranagement.

Conclude on the appropriateness ol' management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a malerial uncenainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. lf
I conclude that a material uncenainty exists. I am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statcments or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifi my
opinion. My conclusions are based on thc audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's
repon. l{owever. t'uture events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures. and rvhether the llnancial stalcrnr'nls rcprcsL'nl thL'trnderlling transactions and events in a

manner thal achir'vcs lair pre\cnt lr(,n.

I communicate with those charged uith govsrnancc regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and

timing ofthe audit and significant audit tindings. including any signiticant deficiencies in internal control
that I identity during my audit.

;
, Acc



It.

I also provide those charged with governancc \\itl'r a statenl!'nt thal I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and lo conrmunicate with them all relationships and other matteB
that may reasonably be thought to bear on nry indepcndencc. and where applicable. related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by lhe Companies (Auditor's Repon) Order, 2020 ('the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms ofsub-section ( | I) ofsection 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, I give in
the Annexure a statement on the matters specitied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, I report that:

I have sought and obtaincd all the intbrmatiorr and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and
beliel'were necessar) lbr thc purposr.s ol'ntt audir.

b. ln my opinion. proper books ol'account as rcquire'd br larr have been kept by the Company so lar as it
appears from my examination ofthose books e\cepl tbr the matters stated in paragraph 2(i)(fl below on
reporting under Rule I l(g)

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and l-oss. Statement ofChanges in Equity and the Cash Flow
Stalement dealt with by this Repon are in agreement with the books ofaccounl.

d. In my opinion. the albresaid standalonc llnancial staternents comply with the Accounting Standards

specitied under Section 133 ofthe Acr. rL'ad wirh Rule 7 o1'the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on i l'' March 2024 from being appointed as a director
in terms ofSection 164 (2) ot'the Acl.

f'. With respect to the adequac) ol'tlre intcrndl linancial conlrols ovcr tlnancial reponing ol'the Company
and the operating eflbctivcness ol'suclr controls. rel'er nr1 scparatc Repon in Annexure A.

g. No managerial remuneration was paid during the year and hence reponing on compliance with the
provisions ofsection 197 read with Schedule V ro the Act is not applicable.

h. The remarks relating to the maintenance olaccounts and other matters connected therewilh are as stated

in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporlinS under Section 143(3Xb) and paragraph 2(i)(0 below on

reporting under Rule I l(g).

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repon in accordance with Rule ll of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in my opinion and to the best of my information and

according to the explanations given to me:



a
-l'he 

Company does not lrave any pending litigations as on the date of Balance Sheet.;

C

b. '['he Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
Ihere were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protcctit-rn Fund br thc ('ornpan1.

d. (i)The management. as crplained in Notc ll-lV(a) ofthe llnancial statements. has represented
that. to the besl ol'it's kno$ ledge and bclicl. no tunds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either tiom borrowed lunds or share prerniunr or any other sources or kind of t'unds) by the
company to or in any other person(s)or cntity(ies). including loreign entities ("lntermediaries").
with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behall'ofthe compan\ (-Ultimate Beneliciaries") or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The management. as explained in Note 33-lV(b) ofthe financial sralements, has represented,

that. to the best of it's knowledge and beliel. no t-unds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or enlity(ies). including tbreign entiries ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly. lend or invest in olher persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever b1 or on behall'ol'the Iunding Pan.\ ("Ultimate Beneticiaries") or provide any
guarantee. securilv or the like on behall ol rhe [Jltimate Bencllciaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures. rhar I considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances. nothing has come lo m\ r'lotice that has caused me to believe thal the
represenlations under sub-clause (i) and ( iitcontain anl,material mis-statement.

e. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and hence reporling under
this clause is not applicable.

l'. Based on my examination which includcd test checks, the company. has used accounting
software for maintaining its books ol account which has a t'eature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility except in respect ofpayroll records wherein the software did not have the audit trail
feature enabled throughout the year. The audit trail facility has been operating in all other
accounting software fronr lst November 2023 for all relevant transactions recorded in such

soliware. Funher. lbr the periods where aLrdit rrail (edit log) thcility was enabled and operated, I

did not come across anv instance ofaudit trail l'calure bL.ing tampered with.
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(a) (A) The Company has maintained records showing parliculars of Property, Plant and Equipment
including quantitalive details and situation.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing t'ull particulars of intangible assets

(b) These Propenies, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management at

reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical verification.

(c) The Company does not own an.v immovablc propcrlies other than improvements to leasehold

buildings.

(d) The company has not rcvalue'd its Propenr. I)lant and llquipmr'nts during the year and hence this
clause relating to revaluation is not applicable.

(e) As per the information and cxplanalions flrnished to me. no proceedings have been initiated or are

pending against the company fbr holding an1 benami propeny under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules rnade thereunder.

(a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable

intervals and in my opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of stock were not material having
regard to the size of the opcration ol'the companr .

(b) The company has renewed working capital linrits in excess of'llve'crore rupees. in aggregate. from

banks or tlnancial institutions on the basis ol'securitl ol'current assets during the vear. In my opinion
and according to the information and explanations firrnished Io me, the quanerly retums or statements

filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
accounl ofthe Compan).

iii) Investments/Loans/Advances and Cuarantees

During the year. the company has not made an) investments in or provided any guaranlee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties other than those given in the normal course of business.

Accordingly. none ofthe subclauses under this heading are applicable.

i.) Fixed Asscts

iii) Inventories



iv)Comp liance with Sec 185 and Sec 186

ln my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the company had not granted

any loans to parties to whom provisions ofSec 185 applics and consequenlly clauses relating to terms and

conditions olloan. pay'nrent ofinterest and rcpar nrcnt ol'principal and stalus ofoverdue are not applicable.

ln my opinion and according to the inlbrmation and erplanations given to me. the company has nol made

any investments. guarantees during the year to which the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the

Companies Act 2013 applies.

ln my opinion and according to the inlbrmalion and explanations given to me. Ihe company has nol

accepted any deposits or amounls deemed to be deposits to which the provisions ol Section 73 to 76 ofthe
Companies AcI.20l3 and rules made there under applies.

vi) Cost Records

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me. the Central Covemmenl has

not prescribed the maintenancc ol' cost records undcr Scction I 48( | ) ol' the Companies Act. 201 l. for the

compan).

vii) Statutory Dues

(a) The company was generally regular in depositing ivith appropriate authorities undisputed statutory

dues towards Provident Fund, Employees State lnsurance, Income Tax, Coods & Service Tax, duty of
customs. cess and other statutory dues" wherever applicable. There were no arrears of undisputed

statutory dues as on the last day of the tinancial year tbr a period of more than six months from the

date they became payable.

(b) According to the records ofthe company. there are no disputed statutory dues are outstanding as on

the date of balance sheet.

viii) Undisc losed lncome

ln my opinion and according to thc inlirrnratior arrd crplanations givcn lo rnc. thcrc are no lransactions

which are not recorded in the books ofaccount whiclr have becn surrendered or disclosed as income during

the year in the tax assessments under the lncome 1ax Act. 1961.

ix) ReDavment of [-oans

(a) ln my opinion and according to the intbrmation and explanations given to me, the company has not

defaulted in repayment ol interest and principal to any lender.

!Ya

v) Fi\ed DeDosils



(b) Based on the information and explanations given ro nre. the company is not declared wilful defaulter

by any bank or financial institution or an) other lender:

(c) ln my opinion and according to the infbrmation and explanations given to me, the company has

ulilized the money obtained by way olterm loans during the year for the purposes for which they were

obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to me. and the procedures performed by me, and

on an overall examination ofthe financial statements olthe company, I repon that no funds raised on

shon-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the inlbrmation and c\planarions siven to me and on an overall examination of the

linancial statements ol'the compan). I rcport that the compan) has noi taken any f'unds fiom any entity
or person on account olor to rneet the obligalions ol' its subsidiaries. associates or joint ventures

(f) According to the intbrmation and explanations given to me and procedures performed by me, I report

that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in is
subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate companies.

x) Aoolication of tunds raised throueh oublic oller I preterential allotment / prival.e placement

(a) The company has not raised any funds through public oller during the year.

(b) The company has not raised any t'unds during the year by way of preferential allotment or private

placement ofshares or convertible debentures (tully, partially or optionally convertible).

ri) I-rauds

(a) According to the information and explanations given to nre. no l'r'aud, on or by the company, has been

noticed or reponed during the year.

(b) As no fraud. on or by the company. has been noticed or reponed during the year, reporting under this

clause as per section 143( l2) is not applicable.

(c) As represenled to me by the management. tlrere are no whistle blower complaints received by the

company during the year.

xii) Nidhi Conrpan\

ln my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the company is not a nidhi
company and hence this clause in no( applicablc to thc company.



\iii) Related Panv Transactions

In my opinion and according to the inlormalion and explanations given to me. all transactions with the

related panies arr' in compliance * ith Scct iorr I tl8 ol rhc Companics n cl. 201 3 wherever applicable and the

details have been disclosed in the financial statcrncnts as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Being a wholly owned subsidiary, the compan) is not required lo constitute an Audit Committee as per

section I77 ofthe Companies Act, 20ll read with Rule 4(2) ofCompanies (Appointmenl and Qualification
of Directors) Rules. 2014 as amended.

xiv) Internal Audit

(a) In my opinion and based on my examination. lhe company has an intemal audit system commensurate

with the size and nature of its business.

(b) I have considered the internal audit rcpons ol'the company issued till date, for the period under audit

xv) Non Cash'l'ransactions

As explained to me. the company has nol entered into any non-cash transaclions with directors or other
persons during the year

The company is not required to be registcred under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934

and hence lhis clause is not applicable (o the Compan).

xvii) Cash Losses

The company has not incuned cash losses in the tlnancial year and in the immediately preceding financial
yeat

xviii) Resignation ol Auditor

There has been no resignation ol the statutorl' audit<lrs during the year and accordingly this clause is not

applicable.

xix)Coin Concern

According to the infbnnation and explanations Biven to me and on the basis ofthe financial ratios, ageing

and expected dates of realization of tlnancial assets and payment of financial liabilities. other information

accompanying the tinancial slatements. knowledge ol the Board of Direclors and managemenl plans and

based on my examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions. nothing has come to my attention,

which causes me to believe that any material uncenainty exists as on the date of the audit repon that

company is not capable of meeling its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall

due within a period olone year from the balance sheet date. I, however, state that this is not an assurance as

xvi) Reeistration rvith RBI



to the l'uture viability ofthe cornpany. I t'unher state that my reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit repon and I neither give any guarante!' nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a

period ol one year from the balance sheet date. u ill get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

xx) Comorate Social Responsibilit.v

(a) The company does nol have any unspenl amounl towards CSR on items other than ongoing projects

and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(b) The Company does not havc- any anrounl duc in respecl ol'ongoing projects towards CSR and hence

reportinB under this clause is not applicablc.

xxi) Observations by comDonent auditors

The Company does not have any subsidiary conrpanies and hence reponing under this clause regarding
qualifications or adverse remarks by

subsidiary companies is not applicable

the auditors in the Cornpanies (Auditor's Re ) Order reports of

A. S. 8.Com rCA
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ANNEXURF] A To THE INDEPIiNDENT ATII)ITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONT] F'INANCIAL STATI]MENTS OI.' POPT]I-AR AUTO DEALERS PRIVATE
LIMITED, COCHIN

Report on the lnternal Financial Conlrols under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section l4J of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

I have audited the internal llnancial controls over tlnancial reporting of Popular Aulo Dealers Private

Limited ("the Company") as of March 31. 2024 in conjunction with my audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on thar date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's managemenl is responsible tbr establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls
based on "the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

cssential corrponents of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issucd h1 1l're lnstitute ol Chanered Accountants ol lndia". These

responsibilities include the design. irnplerrrcntal ion and mainlcnance ol'adequate intemal llnancial controls
that were operating etlectivell lbr ensuring thc ordcrl-r and eliicient conduct of ils business. including
adherence to company's policies. the saf.eguarding ol'its assets. the prevention and detection of lrauds and

errors. the accuracl and completeness o1'thc' accoLrnting rccords. and the limely preparation of reliable
llnancial intbrmation. as required undcr tlrc ('onrpanics Act. 2011.

Auditors' Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reponing based on my audit. Iconducted my audit in accordance with the Cuidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,20l3,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lntemal
Financial Controls and. both issued by the lnstitule ol'Chartered Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and

the Guidance Note require that I compll rr ith cthical rcquirem!'rrts and plan and pertbrm lhe audit to obEin
reasonable assurance about whether adequate inlr'rnal llnancial controls over financial reponing was

established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated ellectivc'ly in all material respects.

My audit involves pertbrming procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the adequacy ol the intemal

tinancial controls system over tinancial reponing and their opcrating eU'ectiveness. My audit of internal

llnancial conlrols over tlnancial reponing includcd obtaining an understanding ofinternal financial controls

over tlnancial reponing, assessing the risk that a nraterial ueakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating etlectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemenl of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit

opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial reporting.

'o
2
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reponing is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reponing and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal
tinancial control over financial reponing includes thosc policies and procedures that

l) pertain to the maintenance o1' records that. irr reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ol'thc conrpany:

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordancc'*ith gc'ncrallr acccptcd accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures ol the corrpanr are bcing nradc onlr irr accordance with authorisations of management

and directors ol'the companl: and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiorl or timely detection ol unauthorised acquisition.

use, or disposition of the company's assets thal could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitalions of internal linancial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management ovenide of controls, material misstatements due to error
or tiaud may occur and not be detected. Also, proiections ol any evaluation of the internal financial

controls over tinancial reponing to t'uture periods arc subject lo the risk lhat the internal financial control

over financial reponing may become inadequatc hccausc ol'changes in conditions. or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may detcrioratc.

Opinion

In rny opinion. the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system

over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reponing were operating

effectively as at March 31,2024. based on "the internal control over financial reponrng criteria established

by the Company considering the essential components ol'internal control stated in Cuidance Note on

Audil ol' lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing i ed by the I titute of Chanered

Accountants ol'India"

tcAA
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Populrr Auto Daalcrs Privrte Limit€4 EoaLuhm
Brhrc. Sbeet

(All rmouras itr INR milions)
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PopuhrAuto D..l.n Privrte Limitcd, Emrkuhn
Strtemcrt of Prolit lrd Lost
(All lmouua! itr INR millioot)
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Populrr Auto Dc.lers Private Limited, Ernskul.m
Crsb Flow Stlt.nrtrt
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/or and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectoE oi
Populrr Auto D.rlers Privrte Limited
CIN : U50l0l KL2005PTC0t8670
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Place : Kochi
Dare : 15 .o5.2o+ DN:0001

John K Prul
Dir€ctor

DIN:00016513



Popular Auto Dealers Priyate Limitcd, Ernakulam
Cash Flow Statement

(All amounts in INR millions)

Reconciliation of linatrcial liabilities forming part of financing activities in accordatrce rryith IDd AS 7:

As at
I April 2023

Cash flows Non cash chatrges As at
Fair value Others 3l l{arch 2024

changes

Non current borrowings *

Cunent borrowings

Lease liabilities (refer note 17)

33.90

160.74

127.18

(13.20)

62.99
(42.39) 63.90

Particulars As at
I April2022

Non cash changes As at
Fair value

changes
Others 3l March 2023

Non cunent bonowings *

Cufient borrowings

Lease liabilities (refer note l7)

34.77

136.03

88.21

(0.E7)

24.71

(37.02) 75.99

33.90

160.74

127.18

*includes current maturities of long -term borrowings

(Refer to note 9 & l0 - Cash and cash equivalents)

report eyen date attached

B.Com tCA

CHARTERE UiITANT

Place : Kochi
Date:t5.o5-.9na+

for and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
CIN : U50l0lKL2005PTC0 18670

/
N John K Paul

Director
DIN:00016513
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Particulars

20.70

223.73

148.69

Cash flows

A. S.

DIN: 00018827



Popuhr Auto Dealers Private Limited' Erntkulam
Ststement of chsnges in Equity

(All amounts in INR millions)

A. Equity Share capital Amount

As at 3l March 2022 5. r0

Changes in Equity share capital

As at 31 March 2023 5.r0

Changes in Equity share capital

As at 3l March 2024 s.l0

B. Other

Balatrce es at I April 2023 37.45 295.61 (0.20) 332.92

Ind As Adjustmert on ac{ount of lease

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

9t.27 91.21

(0.31)(0.31)

Total comprehensive income 91.27 (0.31) 90.96

Balarce as at 3l March 2024 37.45 386.9,r (0.s1) .r23.88

The description ofth. n.ture rnd purpose of crch rcscrvc within Equity tu 13 follows:

I Securities PreEiuE
Represents premium arising out of issue of 14,704 Equity shares of Rs.l00/- each at a premium of Rs.2,547 per sh8rc

durinc the FY 2018-19.
2 RctsinGd carnirss

Repres€nts accumulation of retained eamings of €€tli€r years.

of even date attached

A. S. g.Com fCA

/or and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Auto Dealers Privrte Llmited
CIN : U50l0l KL2005PTC018670

CHAR D rA T

tr,l.

Place ; Kochi

Dale : t5.O6io-a+

fr*p^,"/
Na Phi

turr:

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Items of other

Comprehensive
Income Total other Equity

attributable io Equity
holders of the

CompanySecurities
premium

Retained

eamings

Remeasurement of
net defined benefit
liability/ (ass€t),net

of tax

Bal.nce rs at I April2022 218.88 0.41 256.74

lnd As Adjustrnent on account of lease

Total compreheosive income for the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

'76.79 76.79

(0.61)(0.6r)

Total comprehensive income 76.'.19

Balatrce as at 3l March 202J J7.45 295.61 (0.20) 332.92

6;!ff!
+ ri

0 D

6

D

: 0001882

Director

DIN: 00016513

37.45

(0.61) 76.1t



Popular Auto D€alers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

l.l Company overview

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in 2005 as a Private Limited

Company. The Company is engaged in the business of sale of automobile spare parts and accessories,

Sale of used cars. The Company is headquartered in Kochi, India and has operations in Kerala and

Kamataka.

1.2 Basisofpreparation

A. Statementofcomplisnce

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited whose financial

statements are prepared in accordance with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015

notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act), as amended and other relevant

prgvisions of the Act. Consequently, these financial statements are prepared in accordance with

Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015. Further, being a subsidiary of a listed public

company, this Company is also deemed to be a listed public company.

Details of Company's material accounting policies are included in Note 1.3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional

currency. All amounts ale presented in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cases wherever fair
value is applicable.

D. Use ofestimates ,nd judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual resuls may differ from these estimates.

Estimates urd underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most material effects on

the arnounts recognized in the financial statem€nts. Basis ofpreparation (continued)



Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financisl stst€ments (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

I 3 Materirl rccounting policies

13.1. Propcrty, phnt rnd equipment

i. Recognition snd mersurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cos! which includes capitalized borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

cost ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment mmprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, road tax after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs ofdismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) ofproperty, plant and equipment.
Aly gain or loss on disposal ofan irem ofproperty, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown
under other non-current assets. The cost offixed assets not ready for its intended use at each balance sheet
date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofthose fixed assets
that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized. Other
borrowing costs are accounted as an expense in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Deprecirtion

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of prop€rty, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally
recognized in the profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful lives of assets.

n1

s 0
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ii. Subsequentexpenditure



Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financial stateDents (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Class of Assets Previous Life Revised Life
Building 60 60

Plant and Machinery l5 l5
Electrical Equipments l0 l0
OfIice Equipments 5 5

Computer and Accessories 3 3

Motor CaI 8 8

Motor Cycle t0 t0
Fumitue and Fittings l0 l0
Software 3 3

Tools & Equipments 5 5

1.3.2 Intangibleassets:

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets

are amortized over their respective individual estimaled useful lives on a straightJine basis,

commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is included in
amortization in profit or loss. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of assets Yea rs
3

Goodwill 5

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and

adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the

specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

1.3.3 Employee benefits

Sh ortt erm emp I oye e b e nefi t s

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months ofreceiving employee services are classified as

short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term

employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service

is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus,

ifthe Company has a present legal or constructiv€ obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service

provided by the employee and the amount ofobligation can be estimated reliably.

0a
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the linrncial statements (contiDucd)

(All amounts in INR millions)

P o s t - em p I oym ent b enejhs

Defin ed contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
Contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Covemment administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an

employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered

by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payment is available.

The company is covered under the Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insumnce Corporation of India for
future payments of Graluity as determined on actuarial basis by LIC oflndia. The contribution is debited

to gratuity payable.

Delined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The

Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amomt of
future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit melhod.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuadal gains and losses are

recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense on

the net defined b€nefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined

benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are

recognized in profit or loss.

Other long term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in r€spect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment

benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in retum for their service in the

current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of
any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis ofan arnual independent actuarial

valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement gains or losses are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

s
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to th€ linancial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

1.3.4 Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligalion. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance

sheet date) at a pr€-tax rate that reflects current market assessments ofthe time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding ofthe discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.
A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected nel cost ofcontinuing with the contract. Before such a provision
is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

1.3.5 Revenue

Revenue on sale of vehicles, spare parts and acressories is recognized when the risk and rewards are

transferred to the customer and is accounted net ofGST urd trade discounts, ifany.
Commission income is recognized when services are rendered and in accordance with the commission
agreements.

Discouns and incentive income is recognized when the services are rendered and as per the relevant
scheme/ arrangement with the service receiver. Trade discounts from principaVmanufacturer are also
gouped under discountvincentives. In respect of other heads of income, the Company follows the practice

of recognizing income on an accrual basis.

1.3.6 Inventories

Inventories rre valued on the basis ofcost or net realizable valug whichever is less.

Cost for this purpose is arived at as follows:

o Manrti Spares & Accessories and Ashok Leyland Spare pads are valued at Cost on FIFO basis.

. TATA Spares, Axalta products, Shell products are valued at Weighted Average basis.

o Kartrenz used cars division, valuation is done on specific identification basis

1.3.7 Financialinstruments

i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other

financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party 10 the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

t
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Popular Auto Derlers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amouns in INR millions)

1,3.7 Financial instruments ( Continued)

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii) Classification atrd subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost, FVTPL or fair
value in other comprehensive income @VOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequ€nt to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in ocl (designated as FVocI - equity
investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. on initial recognition, the company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized
mst or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an ass€ssment ofthe objective ofthe business model in which a financial assa is held
at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each ofsuch investments and the operation of those policies in
practice.

- the risks that affect the performance ofthe business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assas in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

0
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Popular Auto Dcalers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in tansactions that do not qualiry for de recognition are not

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition ofthe assets.

1.3.7 Financial instruments ( Continued)

Financial assets that are held for hading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured ar FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cashflows are solely payments ofpincipal and interest
for the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value ofthe financial asset on initial
recognition. 'lnt€rest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the oedit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic

lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative msts), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments ofprincipal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset

contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amomt of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- conting€nt events that would change the amount or timing ofcash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension feahres; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Finmcial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified

t

Financial

FVTPL
assets at These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets

amortized cost

at These assets are subsequently measured at amortiz€d cost using the effective
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest

income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized

in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or
loss.

Equity investnents

FVOCI
a1 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents

a recovery of part of the cost of the invesfinent. Other net gains ald losses

are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

;( )_ t0tltl
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial

recognilion. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including

any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured

1.3.7 Financial instruments ( Continued)

at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and

losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de recognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

iii) De recognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfen the righs to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all ofthe risla and rewards of ownenhip ofthe financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

and does not retain control ofthe financial asset.

Ifthe Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recogniz€d on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred

assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged

or cancelled, or expirc.

The Company also derecognizes a financial tiability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms axe substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
ftrancial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in
profit or loss.

iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net arnount presented in the balance sheet

when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set offthe amounts and

it intends either to settle tlrem on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

v) Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedg€ its foreign currency and interest rate

risk exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

$til
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

1.3.8 Impairment

Measuremtnl of qeded c?ed loss6

Expected credit losses are a probability w€ighted estimate of cItdit losses. Crcdit losses are measured as

the pres€nt value ofall cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to roceive).

Prcsenlatiot ofallowancefor expected credit losses in the balance sheel

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying

amounl ofthe assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that

there is no realistic prosp€ct of recoyery. This is generally the case when the Company det€rmines that the

deblor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate suflicient cash flows to repay the

amounts subject to the write off

ii) Impairm€nt of non- financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,

then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into

cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest goup of assets that generates cash

inflows that are largely independent ofthe cash inflows ofother assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount ofa CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value

less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated futule cash flows, discounted to their present value

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cunent market assessments of the time value of money and the

W

i) Impairment of linanci.l instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measued at

arnortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit

impaired. A financial asset is 'cr€dit impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows ofthe financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expocted credit

losses. Lifetime expested credit losses are the expected sredit losses that result from all possible default

events over the expected life ofa financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum

conaactual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.



Popular Auto Dealen Private Limited
Notes to the finencial st tements (continued)

(All amouns in INR millions)

risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

ln respect of assets for which impairment loss has been reclgnized in prior periods, the Company reviews
at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
arnount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount thal would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairmenr
loss had been recognized

1.3,9 Ind AS I 16 - Leases

Ind AS I 16 has replaced existing leases standard with effect from 01.04.2019,Ind AS 17 Leases (Ind AS
17) and sets out the principles for the recognitiorl m@surement, presentation and disclosure of leases for
both lessees atld lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A
lessee recognizes present value of the lease payment (discounted using incremental borowing rate) as

right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments and lease rent expense will be replaced \yith the amortization of right-of
use-asset and interest accrued on lease liability. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure
requirements for lessees and will have consequential impact on cash flows categories as well. The new
standard substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 17.

The Company has applied the provisions of this standard only in respect of those lease agreements other
than short term leases. Where the non-cancellable period in the lease agreements entered into by the
Company are for a period of less than one year, such leases fall within thc meaning of short term lease as

per the standard and thus qualifies for exemption as per para 5 to 8 of Ind AS 116. Accordingly, this
standard is not applied for short term leases.

1.3.10 Recognition of interest income or interest expense

l.3.ll Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year

l

Interest income other than received from banks is recognized on effective interest rate basis and Interest
Income from banks are based on statement received from banks.

The'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life ofthe financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
the amortized cost ofthe financial liability.
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying arnount
ofthe asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the arnortized cost ofthe liability.

l,



Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AIl arnounts in INR millions)

and any adjustrnent to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate ofthe tax arnount expected to be paid or received after considering

the uncenainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measuEd using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only ifthere is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis

or simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation

purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect ofcaried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Defened tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that futuIe taxable profits will be

available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that

future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the

Company recognizes a defened tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable

temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be

available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized or

recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is

probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Defened tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is

realized or the liability is seftled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date. The measurement ofdeferred tax reflects the tax consequenc€s that would follow from the

manner in which the Company expects, al the reporting date, to recover or s€ttle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current

tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same

taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a

net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

1.3.1I Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the bonowing of funds.

Borrowing costs dircctly attributable to acquisition or constn-rction of an asset which nec.essarily take a

substantial period oftime to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as pajt of the cosl ofthat asset.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.3.12 Earningsfloss per share

The basic eamings/loss per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the

year.

The number ofshares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number

ii. Deferred tax



Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements (continu€d)

(All amounts in INR millions)

of shares oonsidered for deriving basic eamings per share and also the weighted averag€ number ofequity
shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as ofthe beginning ofthe period unless issued at a later date.
In computing dilutive earning 5rr share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces
eamings per share or increases loss per share are included.

1.3.13 Cash-flow stat€m€nt

Cash flows are reported using the indirect metho4 whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
oftransactions ofa non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals ofpast or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing acrivities of the Company are
segregated.

l.3.l,l Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity ofthrce months or less which are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in value

1.3.15 Prior Period ltems

Expensevincome less than Rs. 10,00,000, if any, are not treated as prior period items as they are not
material considering the scale of operations of the company. Further, expense / income relating to earlier
years which crystallised during the year are not treated as prior period items.
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4InYaltmant!
NoD-currc[a lnY6tmcrt$ unquolcd

Idvcstmatrt in CoDpstrics

Svatr Autotech Privete LiDitcd
(15,000 0.0001o/o convertible deberturca ofRs. 100

eech)

IrvcatDcDt ln M[tu.l Futrds

Note I : Details of hvestme[ts itr mutual filnd utrits

5 Otb.r fiD.lci.l $scts
Non Cullara
CoNider.d good - Utrsecurtd
ReDt and other dcposits

6 Other rss.as

Notr.curratrt
Consid.r.d good - UDsecurcd

PrepayE€ats

Dispure.d Taxes

Balalc-e with Gratuity Ftod

Curranl
Conridcrcd good - Urrccurcd
Prcpa,.6eils
Advaoc€ to staff
Advsrc€ for Capital Goods

Payment !o vendoB fo. supply ofgoo& and servicrs

7 ltrv.trto.icE
(V8l!ed at lower ofcosr atrd redisable value)

Sp&Es a[d lubricaats

Used Cars
Ms h Transit- SpsrE

Less: Provision for obsolete itrventory

Populrr Auto D..len Privstc LiEitcd, Errskulrm
Notc! lo the FiarDcirl Strtcmcnh (cortinu.d)

(All amourB ir INR milliotrs)
As rl

3l M.rch 2024

1.50

t7.15

21.30

As rl
3l Merch 2023

4.88

1.79

9.13

9.lJ

26.4t
26.41

2.88

0.49

.3.37

3.32

0.13

r.84

8.10

13.J9

16.76

361.J{
0.73

L26
0.14

3.77

5.17

I t.E,l

296.61

15.85

48 88
297.69

8.10

0l ul

Perticulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 3l Msrch 202J

Units in
absolute Nos Amount

Units ir
absolute Nos Amoulrt

Aditya Birla Sun life Mutua.l Fund - 1038149498

CaMra Robeco Mutual Fuad- 10814884323

DSP Mid Cap (G)-IM740K0I128
IPru Bluechip lund (G) (SIP) (INF I 09K0 I BL4)

Kotak Small Cap - RP (G) -INFI74K0 t2l 1

NiDpon lndia Small Cap 408207714581

3,145

12,890

22,128

30,448
t 1,743

27,742

2.4s

2.73

2.51

2.93

2.s5

3.92

2,709

tt.24l
10,438

26,68s

5,558

2s,221

1.56
I.74
0.86

LE0

0.87

2.30

Totrl i.veslments in Mutual Fuod Units t,0E,096 17.15 t1,852 9.13

)
'=
2

J60.61

*

289.s9

r8.65

21,30

247.15

8.65

41.89



Popuhr Auto D€rlers Priv.te Limited, f,rukuhm
Notcs lo thc Flmncirl Strt€m€trt! (cortiru.d)

(All.drounl3 in INR millioB)

3l March 2024
As rt

3l Merch 2023

t Trada racdvabhr
Clrrtrt
CoDsidered good - Uns€cued

(n) Which haw signifcstrt incrca!. in Crcdit Rbl
(b) Credit impdrcd
las:Allo*anca for €xp€ctad cr€dit lo6s

(c) O$€Is
N.a tr.d. rldv.tL.

109.56

0.80

(0.E0)

227.18

53.32

20.83

(20.81)
213.3s

3J7.f,,1 266,6.1

Trade receivables schedule

Ar st 3l Msrch 2024

Outstanding for following periods from duc dale ofpsymant

6 months - I ycar l-2 ye&s 2-3 yeais Mora thnn 3 years

l,€ss than 6

Inonths Total

i)Undisputed Tmde receivables - considercd good

ii)Undisputed Trade Reclivables - which have

significaat increlse in crcdit risk

227.78

107.78

o.42

33s.98

0.95

0.t4

l.(B

0.29

0.05

0.34

0.54

0.t9

0.73

227.7A

1(D.55

0,m

33&r4

iii)Undisputed Trade Rcc€ivables - credit impaircd

A! rt 3l Mrrrb 201,
Paniculars Outstsnding for followint pciio& from due dale of paynrdr

6 months - 1 ycsr l-2 ycars 2-3 ye3rs Mora thrn 3 yea$
Lrss than 6

months Total

i)Undisputed Tradc receivables - considered good

ii)Uddisputed Trade Receivables - which have
signific€nt increasc in crcdit risk

20t.42

s3.32

4.19

266-93

493
213.35

i32

20.83

2t7.s0

iii)Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impairEd

2.05

2.05

For deails oftsade recaivables ftom rclated p6ni€s, refer note 33.

The Companys exposutc to crEdit ond cuflency risk! and loss allo\mnces related to tradc r€ccivrbles are disclooed in note 3 I

9 Crlb rnd .r!h eqrlvalents
Balanc€ wilh banks

- in curr€nt accounts

- in deposit accounts

Cash on hand

Calh ard clsh aqulv.lclb ln bahlc. lh€et

13.3t

0.10
L67

21.85

0.09
2.15

15.08 21.09

l0 Brok brLtrcas
Balance in banks as margin moncy with maturity more than 3 rnonths 12 9614 50

I t.50 12,96

E0

r0$ll \z
itro?51.-

t

10.54

15.57

3.95

3.95





Populrr Auto D.al.B Priv.te Limit d, Er[rL tm
Notas to thc Fiorocirl Stst.metrt! (cotrtitrucd)

(All smounts in INR milliotrs)

12 Borrowiog!
Notr+ullant

Term loans tom tanks

Term loans fiom linanciel institutions

Ar rt
3l Mrrcb 2024 3l M.rch 2023

20.30

0.53

8.10

8.70 20.8J

Corraot
sacutal loarrs

Cash credit snd overdraft frcilities frolt banks

Cunent maturities of long-term bonowings

207.63

12.00

144.t4

r3.07

lran Aom Directors 15m t5 90

235.73 173.8r

244,43 194.61

Note l. Term t an and Cash Crcdit from Kotak Mahindra B6nk Ltd is s€culed by first chrrSa on 6ll currcnt asse6 paripassu with

South IndiEn Bank cxcluding sparas slock funded by Stsndard Chancrrd Bsnlq State Bank of lndia & Axis Bank Limited and

padpassu charge on morable ass€ts ofthe company with South Indian Bsnk, Equitable mortgage ofthe immovable properti€s ofhe
firms in which promoters are interested held as common collateral for the grcup ald personal guarant€€s ofthe promoter directon

snd their spouscs , corpoErte guaratrtee of the firms in which promoters sle interested. Tcrm loan is repayable in 60 monthly

insrallments Gnging hom Rs.0.0E Million to RJ. 0.ll Miuion. working C.pitol t€rm losns under ECLC schcme &om Kotsk

Mshrndn Bank shall be and deemed to be secured by extensrcn of cha8e on all existmg securitieJ properties available for existing

facilitrcs on sccond rank basis.Thc Principal amount is repslBble rn 36 monlhly installments of Rs. 0.77 million posl moratonum

p€nod of I year from the datr ofdisburs€ment.

Note 2 :worklng C8pital Term t an under ECI-C schcme of National Crcdit Cuslsntee Trustee Cotupany Limited frorn Kotak

Mahindra Bank Ltd is secur€d by an etension of charge on primffy s€curiti€s available for existing frcilities on a sccond tsnk

bssis.The principal smount is repayabb in 36 monthly lnslallments po6t moratorilrm period of I y€ar fiorn thc dste of first

d isbursement loth September 2022

Note 3 : Invcntory Funding from Axis Bank is sccured by Hwothecation ofcunent ass€ts funded by Axis Bank both pres€nt and

future and p€rsonal guarantees by all Fomoter Directors. working Capital Tem l.oan under ECLO scheme from Axis Bank Ltd is

secured by 6n crlcnsion of charge on prinury securitics available for cxisting facilities on a s€cond lank basis.Thc principal amount

is to be repaid in 36 nonthly installm€nts ofRs. 0.09 million post moralorium period of I y€4, &om the date offi61 disbursement.

Notc 4 : Cash Credit scclunt from South Indian Bank is sccured by paripassu charge over stock, book debts and all other svaihblc

currcnt alls€sts of the company and the Term La6n from Soutl Indian Bank is s€curcd by hlpothecation of asscts acquired by

utilising the Fund, cquitable mortgage over inrmovable paoperty oflhe Holding comp.ny , Corporate Suarant€a of Holding Compony

snd personal guarantces ofall thc promoter directors ofthe company. Tha Term lrm is Repayabla in 60 Monthly lnstslm€nts ofRs.

0.13 Million wcfDcocmber 2022

Note 5 : Aggregat amount of bonowings guarad&d by diroctors is Rs. 214.49 Millions as on 3lst March 2024 & Rs. 1,16.77

Millions as on 3 I st Msrch 2023

Nore 6: vehicle loans are secured by hpothecation ofthe vehicle financed repayable in installmenl Bnging from 36 to 48 months

Nole 7: Channel Finsnc€ fiom St&dard chanercd Bank is sccur€d against inventory, book dcbls, CorporBt€ gparantc. of Holding

Company and person l guarantccs ofall the promotar directors ofthe compsny

Notc E: t an from dir€ctors 8re lnter€st fr€€. Terms ofrepayment are not stipulated.

Note 9: Cash Crcdit (e-DFS) ftom State Ba.k of India is s€cured by cxclusive h),pothccation, first chargp on Stock & R€ceivables

created oul olthese funds. Equitablc Mortgage of Lnmovable Prop€rties oftha 6lms in \atich ptomoters are inter€sted and Personal

GugIantee by Promotcr, Nav€en Philip and collateEl s€cunty ofKuttukaran Trading Ventures. Corponte Gurrantca by Kuttukamn

Trading venturcs & Popular Vehiclcs and Servicrs Ltd

b$l

d
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PopuLr Auto D..le.! Privrte Linited' Em.kulrm
Note! to lh. FiriEcirl St teEera! (contitrued)

(All.Doortt io INRa io )

t3 Olb.r firtncid li.biltkt
CIrrc!l
ln&rest acanEd bu nol duc on bonowlngF

Du6.o Banks - Corponre CrEdit ClId

Comp€nsated absenc€

CurreDt
Compensated absence

l5 Othcr li.biuti,c!
Culrcnl
Coftact liabililics
Sr.trtory dues payable

3l ilrrch 202,t 3l M.rrh 2023

0.0t
0.24

0.02

0.l5
0.2s

1.55

1.55

0.59

0.17

1.69

069
0.59 0.69

2.11 2.38

50l
17.13

22.20

Thc cont sd liabilities primarily relat. ro thc adv!trcc rec.ived from the custorners lor thc sdc of sporcFrB.This will b.

rccoSrxs.d as rcvctruc as and whca lhc comp.ny mcct th. psformance obligation by dclivcring lhc spercp'rts

16 Trrdc pryrbla
Du€s to micro and smsll entcrpris€s

Torsl oulstanding dues ofcreditors other

thnn micro and smell ent€rDriscs

).71
158.50 r6t 04

162.27

377

161.04

Tmde schedule

Disclosues !s rcquirEd urd.r thc Micro, Smdl nld Mcdium Enl€rpris€s

Thc FinciFl llnounl lEmainiug utrFid to any supPli.r !s rt the end ofdE )€ar

Thc interest dlE otr the Fhcip.l rcmrining oulsttadi[8 rs 5a $e end ofthe y€ar

Th€ lmounl of int€rEst paid und€r the Act, slong wilh thc amounts of th€ paynent

madc beyond lhe appointed day during the y.ar

Thc smount of interest du€ and payable for thc pcriod of delay in m6king palment

(which have been psid but b€yond the appointc-d day durinS the year) but wilhout

adding the inlerest spccilied lmdcr th€ Acl

Thc amount ofinter€st a.crucd a rcmsining unpaid at thc cod ofthc y€ar

Thc lmount of fifihcr itrtcrEsl rcmailring du. snd psyablc cvcfl in the succeding

,tals, utrtil $rch darc r+tcn th. rdcrcst dl,.s t' abovc arc sctdly paid to the

sDull cnt rFisc, for th. purpoee of dirallo*ltrc! as r dcdtrctible exFtrditrc
undlr rhc Act

0r,{/

r0(h!
5810?

A! it 3l Mrrch 2024

OutltrDding for following pcriod! IroE duc di!. of PitDGrl
2-3

Paniculars
Tolal

More $an 3t ss lh€n I y€a, t-2

DMS}'G
ii)Othcrs
iii)Disputcd DIES-MSME

iv)Disput d Du€s.o$ers
v)Unbillcd ducs

t82

t62.21r60.45 1.82

3-Tt
15t.50

3.7t
r56.68

A! st Slst Msrch 2023

OutstrrdinB for followitrg p€riod! frod duc drt. of p.yoetrt

2-3
Particulars

Toral

Less than I year t-2 More than 3

DMSr,{E
ii)Othcrs

iii)Disputed Dues-rdSME

iv)Disputcd Dl€s.oih€rs
v)Unbilled du€s

t6l 04t56.44 460

r61.(x156.,r4 {.60

1.69

1.55

4.n
6-'2

* ./



PopuLr Auto De.l.n Priv.t Lidircd, f,md(uLn
Noi.. to tt fiD.ncirt ltrt mcotr (coniinocd)

(AI .mou!t! in INR Dilio[!)

12 Borroriq! (conlbu.d)
A Srl,t n d otdads of @rs ott co lrbrs orlrc ct rctl e*l ro*bmvlr8t

Notr:
Tt brhncc itrctdB qlrtrnt mddics of loog {arn bo.ro*itr8s

Ttc bomx,ilfs fom b@ts / finmcirl fusitlios c{Iy idcI.la rs&s tom ?. J% lo 12% F smim

\\ \

5
682 025

N.tur. of Dorrorirg 3l Mrrch
2m4

3l M.nh
2023

Security terms

i\or{u rr6nl, 3e.urcd

T.rh l,orn from Bi'k -

Cspital cxpcndituc
058 255

T.m t/M ,nd Cash Crdit frorn Kolal Mahin&a Bsnk Ltd is s..ured by 6ni char8E oo all

cuncnt assels paripassu with South IDdiatr Bahk .xcluditrg spsres stocl fuod.d by Stsdard
Charter.d Bar*,Tata Capilal Filrncial Scrvicts Limited & Axis Ba* Limilcd ard patiPaslu

charge on movable sssets oflhc colhpery wit! Soutl Indian BaDk E{uiablc mort8a8. ofth.
iDEovable prop€rtcs of lhe 6Im3 h which pr.mrotets are intErclsled h.ld 6s coomon

collat€ral for 6c soup and Frsonal Suarant€es ofthe promoter dtc.tors ,nd dleir s?otE ! ,

corporatc guranic. of thc firms h which promoters de intcrcsted. T€rm loar is to bc rcpaid

in 60 montNy insbllrncnls

Tcrm Loan fi'om Banl -
Capitlt cxFnditurc

608

Term Loan ftom South Indran Ba* is s€curcd by ass€sls of thc comprny, morlSaSc ovcr

iDrnovablc prop.rty oflh. Holding company , Corponre guarartc€ ofHolditrg Company and

p€rson l guarant €s ofall thc f,romoier dnc{tors ofthe coBpany

T€nD lorD! im b€ds -
ECrCS

0.81 189

c8Drtal ECLG Bar* trd is s€curcd by a!
o@osion of ch.rgc oo priMry sccrritic! avlilsble for existitrg A. ides on a s.cood nnl
basi!.'nE principd a[lo{Dt b to b. n lid ia 36 mcdltly iast lh.ds offu 0.09 mili@s
poe morslonun p.riod of I ycar toE thc darc of frs dbbult,Ht.

Tc(rl loes too b8Dts -
ECI,GS

t2_70 20.35

workrD8 Capit t Tcfln t €r udct ECrc scheme fom Kotak Mabi,&a Banl tld rs sccurcd

,a c(cnsioo of chrtgc 6 Fimry s.oriti.s avtn6bk for exiltin8 ft.{rlca on a

beirs.Th. princip€t anourt is lo bc rcPaid in 36 modtlv inst flrnf[ts R! 0.7? nilioos
moralonun period of I y.ar tom th. d& offini dishrs.dcnt.

En,I|cial i stitutions
053 r28

vchiclc loans arc s€.urcd by hnothc.ation oftbc vchiclc fin rced aDd pgsontl guannlc.

Repayabl€ in i[slrlm.d for 36 to 48 moo6s

fnancial ionirudoN
0.08

Vehr.lc loans are sccurcd by hpolhe.ation of 6e whicle 6nanced. Repayable n
for 36 to 48 months

Carh credrt ,.d ov€rdr.i
23 38 296

Cash Credil fi'om Kota* Mahindra Bank Lld is secured by first charge on all cutrenl asscts

panpassu with Soulh Indian Bank excluding BPares stock firndcd hy Slandard Chrrtered

Ba*,Tata Capit l Financial Servioes Limited & Axis Baok Limit€d ald paripassu charge on

nolable ass€ts of lhc compary wilh South Indian Bad<, &uilabl€ mortgaS. of lhc

immovablc propcrlEs of thc 6rm! in which promoters are inter.stcd hcld as corunon

colsl.ral for l[c Stoup atrd pcrsonal SuErantees ofthe promot€r directors and lhct spous€s ,

corDorate Busrant.€ oflhc 6rDs in wlich promoters ar€ itrtsested.

Crsb o.dit ad ovadr.ft
b.ilftiB nom botrI!

r02.30 107 05

Cash Credil ac.ounl &om South Indiatr Bank is s€cEed by pariDrssu charS€ ovcr stock,

book dcbts snd all olhqr stailablc curr. assc$s oftb cof,Dary, x0oIlSrgc ovcr iffDovtltl.
prop.ny of lhc Holdirg crmFtry , Cotpomt gt sEtec of HoldiDg Comparv ,trd p.r!oo8l

guIatrl€es of all thc promol.r dircctors of lhe coBp.ny

Cash cEdi ,nd ov.rdr!ff
facilitics fiom ballk!

44 60 l5 05

Fu.dinr 6'0or Ards BaoL is !€cltrEd by Hypo{h€cdion of curr.d ass.ts f$d€d by

Bank bo& prcs.trl .trd futurE ud perlood gua'etees by a[ Promtcr Dr.ctors

Cash cr€dit and ovcrdnff
hciliti€s from banks

18.25 810

Flranc. nom Slrndard chaiered B.rk is s€.ured otr sI cxistiq bool dcbls,

Inwtr|ory. Corpomrc guarsntrc of Holding CotrpaDy and p€rsoDal guarrntcls of sI dlc

dirccioB of lh€ compary. A crcdit Period of90 days ProMd€d for r.palhcnt

Calh crcdit and ovcrdr.ft
faciliu.s fr'om banls

19 30 11.68

Cash Credn (C-DFS) from Stat€ Bank of India is s€cu€d by €xclusivc b?othecatioo,
cbarg. on Stocks & R€ccildles crealed out of these tu!d!. Eq'ritabl€ Monglgc

Immovablc Properli€s of thc tuf,s in which flomoters ar€ int€rest€i ad Personal

by Promoler, Navccn Philip alld collateral slcurity of Kuttukarlo Tradi4 V.no,cs

Corporale Guarantcc by Kuttukaur Trading Ventues & Pop'iar Vchicles atrd SeMc.s Lld

15 90 15 90
t an iom diredors arc Increst fr.c

Torrl 2fi.;13 l9{.6.{

a
*

775



Popular Auao Dcalerr Privrte LiDitcd, Ern.kulrm
Note! to the Financisl Sartcmcut! (contitrucd)

(All arhounts iD INR millioN)
17 Le{ses

The Company has adopte.d Ind AS 116'Leases'with the dale of initial applicatior being April 1,2018 for the limited pupose of
compilation ofResta&d Financial Stalemonts. lnd AS I 16 r€plac€s Ind AS 17 - Leases and relarEd intlrpretation and guidance, The
Company has applied Ind AS 116 usiry the modified .estrospective approacb under which the cumulative effect of initial
applicarion is recognis€d ia the retained eamings al April l, 2018.

Following are the changes in the carryiag value ofright of us€ ass€ls for the period ended

Particulars

As at
3l March 2024

Opening Balance for the period
Additions

L€ss: Deprcciation

Less : ROU Asset on t€rminsted agrcements

114.50

51.51

33.09
0.74

Closing Balao.e 132.t8

As at
.11 Msrch 2023

77.89

68.70
29.62

2.47

111.50

As at
3l Mrrch 2023

27.05

100.l3
127,18

The aggregat€ dcpr€ciation expense on ROU ass€t is included under depreciation ard unortisation expense h the Staterneff of
Profit and l,oss

The following is thc breakup of curent and non-curent lease liabilities

Particulars

As at
3l March 2024

Current lease liabilities
Non-cur€nt l€ase liabilities
Total

23.92

124;t7

t48.69

The following is thc movement in loas€ liabilities during the p€riod ended

Particulars

As at
3l Msrch 2024

Opening Ba.lance for the period

Additions

Add: Finance Cost ac{nred during the period as per IND AS I 16

Less: l,ease liability for the p€riod as per rent agre€ment

Irss:.Lgase Concession

Less : Leas€ Liability on terminated agroements

Closing B8hncc

t27.18

51.52

13.47

42.39

0.00

1.09

118.69

- conbactual undiscounted cash flows

As at
3l Marcb 2023

88.21

69.05

t0.44
37.48

0.02

3.02

127.18

As at
3l March 2023

36.97

92.02

36.15

165.71

D^\tt

5t1

Particulars

As at
3l March 2024

36.46

108.43

6t.47

Less thaa onc year

OIre to five y€ars

More than five years

Total undiscounrcd lease liabilities 206.36

'0t



Popolrr Auto D..lcB Priv.tc LiEired, EmrlrrLm
Not 3 to tha Fir.rcid Saatererta (contio!.d)

(All .rtrourts ir INR milllon!)

Yerrended
3l llerch 2024

Y.ir.trd.d
3l M.rch 2023

l8 R.vGluG fiom oDarrtiotrs
Salcs spar$ and accessories

lncome from schemes and inccntivcs

Sales ofUsei Cars

tabour Income

Revenue

unsatislied (or al the date

19 Othar lncome

Inrcrcst on Fixed deDosits with bank3
lntercst on lncome Tax

Interest on Rent depo6its

Povision for doubdrl dEbB written back

Provision for doubdrl advsnccs llritEn back

Crldit bsl8nce written back

Gaifl o(l sde ofproperty, pLtrt .nd cquipncrt (net)

l,casa Liability writtea Batk
kas€ concassion

Provision for Gfituilv *ritten tuck
Nc! Sain on financisl assets malsuard st fair l'aluc tkough profit

and loss

Other Non Operating Incamc

7,a27.46 2,514.11

2,s71.73

t70 27

84.10

1.36

2,331.15

161.69

40.33

1.00

Racotrcilhdotr of rEvaruc frcm talc of produca ard scrvicas

Gross rcvenue

lrssr Discount allow€d

2,831.58

4.12

2,541.91

7.74

2,821.46 2,5J4.I7

(A) Irb.Egrcg.t of rcveluc lnfotm.dor
The table b€low pr€sents disagglegated revgnues from contacts wilh cuslomers for the below,€9Is €nded by offgrings

and contr ct E?e. The Company b€lieve that this disaggregation best depic6 how the nature, amount, timing 8nd

uncertainity of our rev€nues and csshflows arc effected by industry, market and olher economic factors

Paniculers Year etrdcd

3l Mrrch 2024

Ycar eoded

3l M.rcb 2023

Reveno. by cotrtmct typ€

Fixed price 2,A21.46

2,A27.16

2,53L11
2,t 4.11

(B) Cortrrcl brLnce.

Th. followiog trbtc pmvld.. lnformralon rbo[t trrde rcccivablB rnd cootract lt bilities frcm cortract tvlth

Yerr ctrded

3l Mrrrt 2024

Year endcd
3l Merch 2023

Trade receivables

ConEact liabilities

337.34

5.01

26.67
t.55

(C) Trsnssction price sllocited to rcmrlnlng p€rfonDance obligstiotrs

The following table includes rcvenue expected to b€ recognised in the future related to perfomanc€ obligations that are

1.03
0.50

t.33

20.03

o-*

L23

0.t0
4.93

0.16

0.35

4.42

2.80

0.l9
0.55

0.02

0.61

1.73

15.55

Usad P&$enger cars & t bouI Incorna

Luxury vchicles

Commarcl'l vehicl€s

Od|er!

85.,16 .t t.JJ

2,142,OO

2,534.172,a27.16

Yerr etrd€d

ll Msrch 2024

1.555.07

1.55

I year

bslaoce

l -3 y€ars

Morc than 3 years

5.09

,^.
6v<;
E(,i!'#,),re

3l M.rch 2023



Popuhr Auto Daalart Privrt Limited, EmrhlLm
Notc! to thc li.atrcirl St temcats (continued)

(All.tlrourb in INR millions)

Year ended
3l Mrrch 202{

Year eDded

3l Mrrrh 2023

2,429.i
85.50

2,r88.95

39.53

20 Purrhal8 of ltock-in-trrda
SFres and 8ccessories

Used Cars

2l ChrnSa ln lrvertori.a of sloal(.ltr.trlde
Op€ning stock

Closing stock

2,514.61 2,22a.4a

247.70

3l1.74
194.31

247.?0

(64.(H) (s3.39)

22 Employ.! b.o.llt! crp.o$
Salaries arld allowancts
Contibutioo to provident a.od other fuDds

Provision for GBtdty
ProviJion for lcavc encsshmcrt
Sta.ff wllfffe €xpens€

23 trir$ca colt
Interest on bank bonov/ings
Corpomtc Guoraht6 CoruEission
I erest on Shortrall in Doyment ofadvance bx
Oth€r bonowing aosts

IntereslExF e on Lease Lisbility

24 Depnclallon atrd rmortrlrtlotr crpctrlc
Depreciation on property, plaDt and equipment
Depreciation on Intangible Assets

DeprecBlion on Right-o{-usa Assc!

25 Oth.. atpa.,a!
Rent

Tra6ponation chrrges
PowEr, walcr and filel
hsurancc
Repairs snd maintcnanc€

Building

Computar

Vchicl.
Od!6s

Commuicltion
Advcrtbiag alld sales prornotion

Corponta soaial rEsponsibility
R8t€s 8nd taxcs

Irgal and paofcssional

Travelling srd convelrnco
Housetocpint snd security
Donstio0 aDd charity
Otrlce o(Pansa3

Bad DcbE W.itten off
Allo$ancrs for exp€cEd crcdit lo$, nct
Bar* chrrgcs

Miscellanaous axpens€s

112.22

7.7t
3.50
0.10

s.38

98.57

695

048
4.52

128.98 I 10.52

22.65

1.67

r.36
13.4?

16.2t

1.25

0.lt
1.52

t0.39

9.73

2.56
34.48

8.09

2.53
30.86

6.58

28.59

2.45

1.80

1.80

2.32

3.69

4.27

1.89

1.79

1.65

0.61

0.88

7.31

314
0.0t

4.t 8

2.53

0.06

6.12

21.88

1.89

1.33

3.41

1.86

4.65

3.22

t.78
2.86

l.1 l
o.52

0.95

5.14

2.62

0.01

3.90

0.62

13.55

2.66

0.06

80.1.1

e

c

?-,
T(}THI

682 025a
*

39.15 29.62

46.71 tr-44

17.55



Populsr Auto D€slers Privrte Limited, Ernskulam
Notes to the Fitrsncisl Strtements (cotrtinued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As rt
31 March 2023

26 Income taxes

lncome tax assets/Qia bility)
hcome tax assets (less provisions)

Net income tax assets/(liability) 8t the end

Deferred trr rssetvoirbilitics)
Deferred income tu rssets

Trade receivables

Prop€rty, plant and equipment and computer software

Preliminary Expenses

Ind AS I l6 adjustrnent

Provision for leave encashment

Provision for Gratuity
Total deferred incomc trr lssets
Defened income tax assets after set off (Refer Note b€low)

1.90 (2.46)

1.90 (2.{6)

0.20

1.09

4.15

0.02

5.24

(0.64)

0.004

3.19

0.12
(0.45)

5.46 '7.46

Deferred tax assets and defened tax liabilities have been offset wherever the management has a legally
enforceable right to set offcurrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation suthority.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the management considers the extent to which, il is probable
that fie deferred tax asset witl be realized. The ultimate realization of defered tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of futule taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards become deductible.

Deferred tax asset in respect of unused tax have not been recognized on account of historical losses and
unfavourable cashflow for a prolonged period by the Company.

As rt As rt
3l Mrrch 2024 3l Mrch 2023

Itrcome Tax expense recognised ir Profit and Loss

5.46 7.46

29.40
(3.78)

Current tax

Deferred tax
26.60

2.t2
2E.72 25.62

Income tax expense for the year recoDciled to the accounting profit:

Profit beforc tax
Income tax exp€trse

Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit after tax
Income tax mtes

Income Tax expense

Admissible Expenses

lnadmissible Expenses

Ind AS Adjustments

Incomc tsx erpcnse recognired in profit or loss

It9.99 102.4t

26.60

2.t2
29.40

(3.78)

91.27

25.1680/o

30.00

(7.68)

4.42
(0.r4)
26.60 29.40

0t

I0fl
6E2 02

*')
2

76.19

25.1680/o

25.32

(2.98)

6.53

0.52



Popuhr Auto Dcslers Privstc Limitad, Ernekulsm
Notes to the lhrnci.l strtements (contlnued)

(All .mounB in INR millior3)

(iii) Movcmert
differcm.s
Mov.mcot durirg the p.rlod ctrdcd
3l Mrrch 202,1

A! at Racogotrlsad
I Aprtl2023 tbmuSt rct iEcd

aarnlng

ChsrBrJ (crcdir) tu th€
rt acDctrt of pmfit rtrd

los3

Chrrs./(cEdit) lo Ai rt
oth.rcompr.h. lv. 3l Mrfth 2024

incoma

Allo*&ce for expected credit loss

Provision for employee b€nefits

Lease liabilities,impad on account of
Itrd AS I 16

Excess of depreciation oo propeny,
plalt and equrpment uder lncom€ Tar(

Act, 196l over deprccntion under

Companies Ac( 2013

5.24

(0.33)

3.19

5.04
(0.24)

(0.%)

(1.73)

0.1I
0.20
0.02

4.t5

1.09(0.64)

Net dcferr€d lrr asset/ 0iebllitv) rt 7.16 2.tt 0.1I 5.{6

Movaocal dlring ti. y..r .nd.d 31

Mrrtt 2023

A! at R.caSoniad
I ADnl2022 thmugh rctrircd

aamlng

ChrrSe/ (crrdit) itr th.
itatcmant of Plr)lit rnd

loss

Chrrgc/ (cIdil) ir A!.t
oth.r comprlh.nsiv. Jl Mrrrb 2023

iraoEC

Allowsnce for €xpected credit loss

Provision for chploye€ benefits

Lease liabilitics,impact on account of
Ind AS I 16

Excess of dcpreciltion on propcny,
plant 3nd equipment under lncone Tax
Act, 196l over depreciation l,Ider
Companies Act, 201 3

1.83

0.31

2.60

(3.41)

0.84
(0.5e)

0.20

5.24
(0.33)

3.l9

(1.2s) (0.61) (0.64)

Nct dcfcrrcd til ars€t/ (lirbility) et 3.J9 (3-71) 0.20 7.46

itr tcmpomry

Tar losses carried forwsrd
Ar.a Expiry drtc

3l Mrrrh
2024

A3.t
3l M.rch 2(D3

Expiry- dairParticulars

Brought fonxffd losses - allo\ped to
carry forward for specific pcriod

Brought forward losses - allowed to
carry for\rrrd for specific period

Broughl forwad losses - allowBd to
carry forw8rd for sp€cific pcriod

lang term capital loss - allo*ed to
carry forvJard for sp€cific period

Long tefm capital loss - allowed to
c{rry forward for specific period

lrne t€rm capital loss - allow€d to
carry forward for specific pcriod

Un&bsorH depreciatron- allor{d to
carry forward for infinite p€riod

r0fill \.<
E2 025

t

26 T.t . (crtrlirucd)
B Dcf.rEd Lr rsleu (lirbiliri.r) (.lrtirrcd)

R.cognk d deferrEd trt aalab and (lirbilitl.s)
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Notes to the frnrncial strtem€trts (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

liabilities and commitments

$tAI&'

ltit\
+

As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Particulars

Contitrg€nl liabilities

135.00 r25.00Bank Guarantees

20.00Corporate guarantees

13s.00 1,t5.00Total
Corporate guarantees

Commitments

3.39
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital

account (net of advances) and not proyided for

I



Popul.r Auto Dcrlcrt Privrtc Limitcd, En*uhm
Not6 to thc fiDrtrci.l st t.m.r& (cotrairucd)

(All amounts in INR millions)

2E E.r trgr(lors) p.r shrrc (Amoutrt iD INR)

A. Basic .rmitr8J(lo!.) pcr shrrc
The calculation of profit/loss attributable to cquity share holders and w€ighted svcrage trumb€r of equity sharcs
outstanding for the purpos€ ofbasic eamings per sharE ca.lculatioos ale as follows:

\et rofit sltributsble to shrre holdcrs (brsic)

Particuhrs As rt
3l March 2024

Profit fo. the year, athibutable to the equity share holders 76.18

ii) Weighted averag€ number ofequity shtres (besic)

Opening balance 5r,034 5r,034
Effect of fresh issue of shares for consideration other than cash

Weighted average number of equity shfirs ofINR 100 each for the year 51,034 51,034
Eamings / (loss) per sharc, basic 1,782.34 1.192.73

B. Dihtcd .rmitrgJ(loss) per rha..
Ihe calculation of profit4oss attributable to equity share holders and weighted average numb€r of equity shares
outstanding, afler adjustnent for the effects ofall dilutive potential equity shsres is as follows:

i) Net t/(loss) attributable to shtre holders dilutedu

hted xvera number of u shares c

29 Auditors' remuner.tion under I and rofessional eha nct oftax)

30 Scgment Reporting
The Company is cngaged in the business of purchase and sale of automobile spare parts, used vehicles and rclated
services. The entire operations arc organised aod managed as one organisatioml unit with the same set ofrisks 8rld rehrms,
hence the same has b€en considercd as rcp.esenting a single primary segrnent. Th€ Compatry rctrders its services in India
only and does oot have aoy operations in economic environments 'with different risk and returns; herc€ it is considercd
operating in a single geographic segment. Accordingly, no segment disclosure has been made in these frnancial ststements.

-$'m

t (
I

Particulars
3l Marcb 2024

As it
Jl Mrrch 2023

Net profit for the year, attributable to the equity shar€ holders 90.96 76.18

Interest expeose of compulsorily convertible preGrence share

Net Profit for the yea!, attributable to the equity share holde.s 76.18

Weighted average number ofequity shares of INR 100 each for the year (basic)

51,034 51,034
Weighted average number of equity sharcs of INR 100 each for the year (diluted)

51,034 51,034
Eamings / (loss) per shaE, diluted 1,782.34 |,492.73

Particulers

As Auditor
Statutory audit 0.22 0.19
Tax audit 0.03

ln other capacity

Other matters 0.05 0.16

0.30 0.J8

As rt
3l Mrrch 2023

90.96

90.96

As at
3l Msrch 2024

As st
3l March 2023

0.03



PoprL. Auro DoLn Prn.r. LiDiod, EE.L"l'n
NoG ro tb. fortrci.l !nE6.or. (o.ri!uql)

(All munrs i, INR nili@)

ll Fbld.r IItn.rE i.i.e.ls.t l.ta. -.{l.ar
A 4.....d{ drrnqras ..4 t r t{h€

It. ftlbli.t 4 rbErb crri!8 sDd. rfll lt v.b. oaft&d.l r....r.d tutd.l [eihi.., i.drd4lLir Lvd. i! 6. &t vrll tii.t .

A, .r lt M.lrl ,OiL

nrybr ....rr .t Mrdlr.dy .r O.rr n-.dd ror.l drrrlt!
.funbd .d. Fyr?L [rbl!i..1.&il.d r.h.

ladl lad2 lra t lord

nrucLl .n L rot r.r!$d rl fr! vrto.
Crlh .!d c..h €quivd.d!
B.rl b.l.lB oilE tha elt .nd .!r[ .quid.d.

flr.!.lrl .xeb o.rr.r.d rl Llr r.lr.
R.d D.podi (iEhd.d in OoE ruryid A!.d!)

9
l0
8

J

t

1508
14 50

,11.34

0.42

t50E

117 t4
082

26 43

l8 65

26 4A

1865
26 48

l8 6t1865

a5,t3 rtr,a1 18.65 16.,1, a5.13

ILlIE.
rt .xLl [.[$1t- .erd !. .-..liEd .-l

t6
t2
l7
t3

16227

zaa 4
l,A 64

0.24

\62 27

244 41

14869

0 7,1

M.rd.loriv d Ortd fi.tlcnl
FYTIL li.biliti6 .t .ronu.d

Ird I 14.12 ld.l3 To.rl

Ainrr.ld ur.a ror id(.d.r f.t vd@
C!.n !d c$t .qsiv.lat!
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t0
E

5

5

a

u.o9
t296

26 51

080

u09
t2

26 61

080

25 6l
9I'

25 61

9. 

'3

2,5 61 25 6t
9. tl9 rl

9.r3 
'5.6r 

tala
t$tll.
?iEi{ lLl$lir En !a !t.Elirql cr

t6
l2

t3

t6t 0t
194.66

121.t0

0.15
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Fitrrrcid l!rtmdc[t!- Ftlr rrlo.. .trd rkL mr!.ta6cot (aonaitru.d)

Firrrcbl rilk maragamant
The company's aativities expose it to a variety offillancial risks crcdit risk liquidity rbk and ms*et risk.

Rfu|( mttraganalt frarncwort

Ihe compan/s boord of dtlclors (the Borrd) hss overall r€sponsibiliry for th€ establishment and oversight ofthe rilk numgcmeot frsme*ort. Thcy
oversee how marugement monitors complianca with lhe risk man8gement policias atd prlc€dures, and rcvic$s tbe adcquaa? ofthe risk [r6n gement
famewo* in relstion to lhe risb facrd by the ..nprny. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by intemal 8udit. Inrenal audit undertskes botl
regular 6nd ad hoc rwiors ofrisk maragement controls and pocrdurEs, the results ofi{tich a& reported to lhe Boord.

Popuhr Aoto Dcdal:s Privde Limitr4 ErraLolrn
Not6 to th. fir.ncirl3t tcD.rtr (coodorcd)

(All amounts in INR millions)

Psrticuhrs
AI 

'I3l Mrrth 2024 3l llerch 202J

ltss than I y€r
l -2 years

2-3 yeirs
Mor€ than 3 yelrs

337.31

0.83

280.76

6.74

338. r 4 287.50

i)

tt) CIldft rnrl(

Credit risk is the risk that th€ countarpany will not meel ils obligation under a financial instrumant or customer contrsa! lcading to financial loss. The
credit risk adsas principslly liom its op€Bting activities (pnmarily trade receivobles) and ftom its investing activiti$, including deposits with bank!
and fmancial iNtitutioDs and other fmancial instrumcnts.

crEdit risk is conEollcd by amlysing crEdit linils and crcdirworthiness of crx omors on ! continuous basis to *hom crcdit has bcen grant€d anar
obtaininS nec€ssary apFovals for credit. Thc callcction Fom the trade rec€ivabld a& monitorcd on a continuous be3is b, tha rcccirtbles t€am.

The maxilnum exposue to crcdit risk for Eade receiv.bl€s was as followsl -E-r
3l M.rch 2024

A! 11

3l M.r.h 20al

Trade receivables 338 r4 287.50

J38. t4 287.50

Imp3irmenl anrlysis
The of lrade recervables is as follows

The movement in allowance for credit loss in oftrade and other receivables lhe

No singe customer accounted for more than l0% ofthe revenue. The.e is no significant concenu.ation ofcredit risk.

Credit risk on clsh 6nd c6sh equivalent and other bank balances is limited as the company generally tansacts with bants and financial institutions wilh
high credit ratings assigned by domeslic sedit mting agencies.

ili) Liqoidity rkL
Liquidity risk ir thc risk that th€ company will encountcr difficulu in meeting the obligrrioN ossocial.d with its financial liabiliti€s $ar are s€sled by
delivering cssh or another financisl asset. The componys approoch to maDaging liquidity is to ensure, as far as possiblg that it will alnaF hav€
sufrcient liquidity to mccl its liabiliti€s \*{rcn drrc, under both nonhal and str.ss€d conditions, without incurring unacccptrble locses or risking darrlaga
to the company's reputation. Th€ Compony beliavcs that the working capital G sufficicnt to mcet its curent requircments. Actordingly, no liquidity rkk
is perceived.

The company believes that the working capital is suflicrent to meet its curent requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The table
below provides delails regarding the undiscounted contractual matudties ofsignificant financial liabiliti€s as of31 March, 2024:

5
6E2 0

As rl
3l M.rct 2024

A! aa

3l M.rrh 2023
Allowance for credil loss

Balalc€ 8t the bcginning
Pfovision cr€atld during the y€ar

Impsirment loss rrcognis€d/ (revcrsed)

BahDc. .t Oa cnd

20.83

0.00
(20.03)

0.80

't.28

0.00

13 55

20.&,

2

*
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PopuLrAuto DealeN Private Lteit.d, Eturkuhm
Notes to the fin!traisl st temGrt! (contiaued)

(Allamounls in INrR millions)

triurci.l InltruE.ntr". F.ir v.lud rnd rill mrtr.B.m.rt (c!odnu.{}

The table belo* provides details regatding the undiscounted codtnctual maturitiB of significant financial liabilities as of 3 I March 2024

The table below provides details regsrding the undiscounted conEactusl maturities ofsignificant financial liabilities as of3l Marsh 2023

SeIlsitivity

Psniculrrs lmprcl oo pmfit or (loss)
IDpact on othar coDponatrts of

equity

3l Mrrct
2024

As st
3l Mrrcb 2023

As rt
3l M.rch 2024

A3 rt
3l Mrrch 2023

I % increase in variable rBte

i % d€crease in rriable rate
(0.20)

0.20
(0 33)
0.33

(0.r5)
0.t5

(0.25)

0.25

The interest mte s€nsitivity is based on the closing balance ofvariable rate borrowings from bank and financial iNtitutions.

d Represenb borowings (shoat trIm atld long term) 6nd cunent maturities oflong tefii bonowings included in other curEnt financial liabilities.

lv) Mrrlct rbl
M&ket risk i! olc risk that &e f[it velue of fututE cash flolvs of a fuuncial insruncnt wi[ fluctu.stc bccause of chang6 itr Bartct pnccs, such asforeign €xchangc ratcs, i c.Bt altcs &d equity pricls.

troreign clrra!3y r&L
The c'!mpany is cxpos€d to curcncy risk to thc axtent that therc is a mismatch bctwcen the culr€trciB in which naDlactions are denominltld and thefunctional curcncy of thc clrnprny The functiorul cutren y of the comptuy i! INR 6nd the compoiy aoes not tratt rny nuteriJ rorcign currency
faDsactions for thc ye6r.

C.!h fo, rEd trlr vdu. Ilaart.t rata filt
The coepany's main i,rerest ra& rkk arises aom brg-term and short-term borowings wi& yariable rates, ir*lich €xpore the corhp.ny to cssh flow
interest ralr risk. The inlerest late on th€ company's fmancial instruments is based on-harket mLs. The compqny rnoiitorc oe moiement in intercst
mtes on an ongoint basis.

(a) Intcr6t r.ta rblcrpGrrr
Th€ expo6urc ofthc compott$ bonowitrg to iot.rcst rate chsnges u the end oflhe ycar alr rs follows:

D

,^

'\
I

Morl th.d I
ya{r

TotrlPryrble
nithitr I

t60.45
23s.73

23.92

0.24

1.82

8.70

124.77

162.27

2M.43
148.69

0.24
Other fi nancral liabilities

liabiliti€s

Trad€ poyEbl€s

Borrowings #

More thrn I
yaarPerticulsrs TotslPsyrble

withio I

Borrowings *
k€s€ liabilitica
Other financisl lisbilities

158.41

173.81

27.05

0.15

2.63

20.83

100.13

t 6r.04
194.64

127.18

0. t5

payables

Finrnciel liabilities (baDk borrowings) As st
3l Mrrch 2024 3l M.rch 2023

rare lonS term borrowings including current rnaturities 2018 32.55
Variable



populrr A[to Dcal.rr prlyaa. Limit O ErD.trt.n
Notcr to thc f[rtrchl rtrtc[ctrB (cotrtiruad)

(A[ amounts in INR hilions)

32 Employ€c bcoelits
A D.lin€d cortributlotr pl.r

The coDpatry mak€s cantn:butioos, &tcdrined specified perccotage of edployees s.lari€qirl rcspect of quali$i4 eoployces
lowards Providrnt fund md o{her fiInds which arD dcfined coDtribution plms.The company has oo obligarioo orfrer Oan to mafe
specified contributions.The oontributiors are charged to the statlmcrrt ofprofit md loss es thcy ascue_

B D.Iio.d Ber.llt Phn
The company op€rales c€rtsil post-€cployment defircd b€lefit plan which is provided for based on actuarial valuation c$ried
out by 8n indep€fl&ot acturry usitrg the projected unit credit method.The compa[y sccrues gatuity as per the proyisions ofthc
Paym€nt ofGratuity Ac! 1972('C,ratuity Act,)

Bas€d od atr actuarial valuation obtained in this respec(followiDs table sets out thc status of lhe b€oefit platl and the amoDnts
recogriscd h lhe compatrys stedalooe flnecial slalefteats as 8r balaice sbeet dale.

Reconcilialion the

C R.coocili.tor oftrrt d.trr.d b.lclit (.r..rlyfirbility

i)Reconciliation of pr€seit lalues of drfined b€nefir obligstion
The folowi!8 tablc sLows s reEoaciliation from the opeoiag balaoc€s to the closilg balarces for rct defined b@efit
(&ss€tyLiability aDd its coEpotr€nrs

Pr iculsrs Pcriod eod.d
Mrrch 31,2024

Y€rr.ddcd
3l M.rch 2023

D.ftrcd brtr.lit oblig.tioo r! rt ah. b.tirtritrg otthe ycer
Curr€ot servic€ cost

Past servic.e c.ost

Iot€rest oost

B€aefits paid

Liabilities &rsuoed (settled)
Rc.maaiurcDGtrt!

Actuarial Gaid(loss) rccognised in oth(r comprEhensive hcodc
-chatrgos i! f!.Dancisl assumptioDs

-chang€s in D€EDgraphio assuoptiod
m over the

10.28

1.61

0.66
(2.44\

0.09

(0._42)

0.85

8.41

|.43

0.45

(0.e7)

(0 1,

1.09
Defined benefit o tioD {s rt the €nd ofthe 10.69 10.28

Perticulars As st
Mrrcb 31.2024

As rt
3l Mrrch 2023

Defmed BcDefir Plan

PIan Asscts

Nct D.lircd b.rcnt li. bility(Aslet)
Liability for compcnsa&d abs€dces

Totxl eEployee ben.lit lxibility
Non-cuIrent drfined b€Defit liability
Curr€nt defircd benefit liability
Other curreit assets(Bal@ce with Life lrsurarce Fulld

10.69

ll.lt
(0,19)

2.14

1.65

1.06

0.59

t0.28

10.07

0.21

2.38

2.s9
1.90

0.69

Particulrrs P.riod €trded
Mrrch 31,2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Phtr rssctMt the bcgionitrg ofthc y..r
Co[tributions paid itrto the plaD

B€nefits paid

Interest incoee

Ass€ts acquted(s€tded)

Ra-rrreosuremanlt

- changes in demographio assuEptio$
- refum on plan ess€t

Brlsnc€ rt tbe end ofthe

10.06

2.76
(2.44)

0.69

0.09

002
I l.l8

7.5s

2.91

(0.97)

0.43

0. t5
10.07

Net delined bcnefit liabili (0.49) 0.21

@!rs
=/ 

rorflr \a



(i) in th€ stsndrlone sartemetrt of 8nd loss

Remeasurem€nts in olher rehetrsive incomr

f, Pla[ Asset

Plan asset of the

The Compay makes sotrurl crotributioo lo the Life Iuurance Corporation of India ( 'LIC') of a! @ouot .dlis€d by LIC. The
Company iras Dot hfomed by LIC of the in}€stue s mad€ by lhem or the bresk up of the plan arsets into various type of
iDves@eots.

F D.fir.d Betrelit Obligrtioo
(i) Actu. rl Arsumptio!!

The following ore the principsl 8ctu8.ial 8ssumptiotrs at rhe reportitrS date (express€d as weighted av€rage)

Psrticulars Period ended

Mrrch 31,2024
Yerr.nd€d

31 March 2023

Discount rat€

Salsry growfh rate

Atrition rate

Weighted average duarion of deiEcd bercfit obligaiton

7.20o/o

6.000/o

20el. p.a wifhdrawal
rate at all rgcs

4.18 Yeals

730%
7.0u/"

20'lo p.a wilidrand
rstc ar Ell ages

4.15 y€ds
The wcighted average assuoptior$ us€d to determhe net periodic b€nefit cost a5 set out betow;

Assumptions regarding futurc mortrlity exp€rierce arc s€t h accordanc€ with lhe standrrd table - IALM 2012-14 (Ultimste). The
Company ass€sses thes6 assumptions with its projecled long-term plsns of groPth ad prelulgnt industsy standards. The discount
rate is based on prevailing m8rtct yiclds of govemDed seouities .

Cratuity is apptcable only io employees drawhg a salary in Indian rupe€s and therE are oo oth€r foreig! defined bcDefit gr!tuity
plalls.

(ii) S.nlitivity rndFit
Reason8bly possible changes 8l tbe reportitrg date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holditrg oth€r assumptioDs oonstar! would
hav€ aff€ctcd thc defmed b€nefit obligdiod by the amomts sho\,w below:

Psrticulrrs As rt3l Mrlch 2024

Ircrcala l)ccrcaia

As rt 3l M.rch 2023

Incteasc Decreage

Discoud rate (0.5% Bove8€ao
FufuIe salary gowth (0.5% mov€ment)

(2.05)

2.t5
2.13

(2.0t)
(2.03)

2.tl
2.12

(2.05)

s

Psrticuhls Period ended
Mrrch 31,2024

Ycrr ended
3l Mrrch 2023

Culrent servic€ cost

Past s€rvice cost

N€l iotercst otr rct dcfitrcd liabitity
Employer Contr-bution
Nct g[tuity cosl

1.67

(0.03)

(2.76)

o.r2)

1.43

0.01

(2.91)

(1.47)

Perticulsrs Period endcd
M{rch 31,202{

Yarr atrdcd
3l Mrrch 2023

Aquarid (gairly loss on defircd benefit obligstion
Retum on plsn asset excluding interest income

Not grrtuity cost

0.42

0.42

0.81

0.81

Prrticulsrs Period cnded
Mrrch 31.2024

Yrir €nded
3l \tarch 2023

Funds managed by Life Insuranoe Corporation of India l l.l8 t0.07

Populrr Auto D.ilcr! Privrt. Limited, Ertr.kul.E
Notc! to th.lirrr.i.l tt t.D.ot! (.otrtitrucd)

(A[ amouts itr INR millioDs)

32 EEploy.. b.nctrt! (cortirucd)
D Expaolaa racogrbad iD tba ltatrdalooa rtttament of prolit rtrd loss

i



Popuhr Arto D..l.rr Privrt LiDited, Er!.tdrm
Not r lo tle fnrnci.l rrlllcDcab (c{.tirued)

(All amounls in INR millions)

3 n&r.d !.nit
I N.rra q del p.tda t C bcrwa ot rMoraw:
(a)E ity haviag sigDifioa influanc. ov.r the comFtry

Popuhr vchicLr sd Scwic€s Lihit d
(c) A!.!ocia&s & F.llow Subqidiarics

Popd.r l&gr Moto6 IDdi. Privste Litrlitld
Visioa MotoE Prin& Linited
POollI Ano wo s Privdc LiEitld
Xcrtcor EquiF.di kivre Umit d
Pnb.l lroton hd Ltd
Kututan Gr!.a Priv.E Linied (Fo.m.tly Lro\'! .c KtelL,Im Prc Oq/tad c.t! A4 Ltd) i
F..gii! ID$..e Blokrr! Pt,t Ld

- Kcy mstr.gedd p.rsoorol aDd tair rd,rlivcs (XMP)

Mr. N.va.o Philip, Dircclot
t'lr. ,ohr X Prul, Dtlc-tor
Mr. Frucit K Peul, Dit ctor
I\,L. Ttffi.s A K.r!&a DirEdor

Mr. Jrobilh I,l' Irrc.ro.
t l'!. Sh.td Jo&o, Spore ofDircctor
trr!. St !.D Fr.Ei!, SF!. ofDEolor

# uFo 4th April 2022

II. Reloted pafiy tnraaetlons:
The transaclions wlth relared

met otr b€hrlf ofthe

Jl Mrrch 20:X
Yerr eDded

3l Mrrch 2023

Revenue fron op€rrtion!
Populff Vchicles and ScMccs Limitcd
Popubr ry{€ga Motors (lndi.) Privatc Liditcd
Vision Motors PriwL Limitcd
Kencon Equipmenrs ftiv't Limitcd
Popular Auloworts Privat Limitcd

100.26

1.99

22.52

7.34

152.8s

2.47

30.71

(0.12)

3.34

ReDt hcome
Regiis Insurance Brokers P\t Lld 015

Popuhr Vehrcles .nd Scoi@s Limited
Popular Mega Molors (Indir) Privat Limitcd

2.53 2.44

Reprir' rnd neitrtenirce
Popular Vehiclcs aad Scwic6 LimiEd
Popular Mega Motors (hdie) Privrt Limircd
vkior Mor.s Prilal. Limit d

0.02

0.52

0.34

0.09

0.46

0.08

f,rDeN€. m€t by lhe ComDrny

Popular Vehicles and ScNiccs Limiled

Popular Mega Motors (India) Priva& Limited
Vision Motors Priv.te Limilcd

Autoworlc Privale Limited
Keracon Equipmerb Privalc Limited

cr€en PnlEte Limircd (Formerly lnosfl as Kuttutaran

3.43

0.7t
o_42

0.28

0.06

3.02

0.56

t58

PogdlI Vehicl6 ad Scrvic6 Linitcd
Populsr Mega Molors (Indir) Prirllc Limited
Vision Motors Itivrtc Limitcd
Prabal Motors Ad Ltd
Rcgiis lisuranc€ B.okeB h/l Ltd
Kuthrkaran Greetr Priltlc Limitcd (Fonierly lnolin as Kuttutatrn

Popular vehicl.s ind S.rvic.s Linitcd
Popular Me8a Morors (India) Privatr Limited
Vision Motors Privrtc Limiicd

v€hicles and S€rvic.s Limited

Vision Motors Privare Limited
Gr€en Private Limited (Formerly hown a! Kuaukar8n

Owned cars Pvt

0.03

0.04

o.22

6.13

1.43

5.34

184

1.56

L7t

o.o2

o.02

0.02

0.02

0.0r

5.12

0.72

1.77

Sale of fixed assets

Kuttukdan Cds P\/l Lid 0.84

Purchrse of lired .$€ll



Gusrantee Cotrlmbsior Plid
I67 1.25Vehicles and Services Limited

0.070.03(ufiuka.an Green PriYale Limited

PoptLt Auto D..L Privrt! LiDit d' ErrakrhD
Not.. io ti. f!.!drl ltttcmeot! (cortiru.d)

(All laouna iD INR milions)

[. R.lalcd party u!trs..tiors: (continu.d)

Gurr!nt6e Commi33ion Receivcd

l. Relsted potty Baldnc.t:

Prrticuhr! .lt Mrrct 2021 31 M.rcb 2021

Trrde r€.eivables

PoFrla, V€hicl6 aDd Scrvicd Limrtcd

PoFIu Mega Moton (lndia) Priv.t LimiLd
Vision Motors Privale Limit d

PoFrlsr Auto*ork Priv3tc LiErlrd
Keracon Equlpmer8 Pnvara Limitcd

Rcgiis Insumnce Brokers P\'t Ltd

Kuttutrr.n Gr€€n Prirdc Limitcd

0.55

0.09

0.03

Trrde Eryable
Pop ar vehicles and Servicls Limitcd

Popular |,"{ega Motors (IDdi!) Privr& Limitcd

Vsion Motor Pdvat Limitcd

PoBrlrI Alnow0*s Pnva& Limit d
Kuttutrnn Grt€n Pivlr. Limit d (Fomctly tnovn as Kuttul.af3n

Pr. Owftd cars Pvt Ltd)
Kcra.oo E4uipments Private LiEitcd

2.85

0.09

0.06

0.36

l8l

r08

Corporste Guarartec Commissior p.yibl€
vehi.les md S€wices Lrmitcd

Mr. Naveen Phil Director

0.42

1470

018

14.'70

Mr. JohD K Paul, Dir€ctor

Vehi€les and Sen'ices Limned

t_20

0.20

120

020

Lorn from Director

Renr Receivable

ry (.) No funds have b..n .dv.nc.d or lo€trcd or invcsled (eilhcr fiorn borro*ld filtrds or sharc PrEdium o. a[y

olhc. sourccs or kiod of filrds) by thc ComFtry to ot in any olhcr pcrson(s) or efiity(ics), incltditrS forcigtr e itica

(_lntermedirries") with lh€ undcrst&ding $tclhcr rcco.d€d in wnting or olherwisc' thtt the i.tem€dirry shdl

lcnd or inv.st in othcr Frsons or cntitics idcrtified by or on bebdf ofahc Company ("Ultimate Bencficiaries') ot

Eovidc any guamntcc, s..udty or lilc on hchalfofth. Ultimate Bcmficiedcs.

G) Tlle Company brs not cccivcd rny fimds from .ny Frson(!) or entiMics) ("Funding Partv") wilh thc

undcrstandrng, wheth€r r..ordcd in fiiting or olhawis€, tbat the Company shdl, whcther, ditectly or indirecdy,

lend or inv€st in otb€r pcnons or eflitics identified by or on bchalf of lhc Funding Party ("tltiru!.
Bcncficiaries") or providc any 8lrrantrc, sacurity or the like on bchalfofthe Ultimalc Bcncficiades.

0

U

t

fd
)=

,,k

2

lL92
0.01

238
0.18



loD.Lr a.t DaLr' kiv.i. hil.4 EndoL!
Nolaloo.tu! irl i ddt (codiDld)

(A[ @d. in INR duioM)

s nrd!. o,cll Sct dltm qtlr.t.t

= Cuctrl a*r! divid.d

r D.br Eqltty drio = aor.l d.hr diviLd bt Tool .qdtt rtN rot.l d. BLE lo tuE ., .!m.r &

. Sld r.n BNNinC, in.tud., CtN", Meoitia of Non Amt Bodo,in|s

'StotT6 Dun iwtirdtddti,,at d,rt6 dNdur r, Bdwino
Rt.io / R.tud o. In6tE.!r Rldo = N.r

l urnov.r R.lio = Corl ofn.t ri.b.o!$n.d divid.d

7 Na opiLl IuE@t B{lo - Tot l i@D. diviatd by l{d Wo,Lint oPird tn.rw,.1to.ti.l
.uftrl r!.n . .!nr. li.biliti6

% Ct rEr ilo Faiu Fr

712.4

1.57

J98,r8

169 0E

162

Mrrtn31,2014 Mrrcb3l,2O2J
Sho.t Tcri B@irEr' t.l
Non Curn Bo@wiigt lhl

% Chrr8. f,om praiou y6r

2r5 73

8.?0

124.94

0.51

-l7f/.

173.

20 El

LA02
0.5E

83lTDA

Ir.U S6d.. Gortrla Xd

'. 
Cba. i6r F!!tu ,{ od

20t.9t
3915

8.70

215 73

0.r!

173.5t

29 62

Nat
r7r.6t

o.n

% Cf.a. te !.wia tE

9t.21
.r21.98

0.21

1619
13E02

o7t

.Z Chluc ton ,rlvid }{

9t 27

\a2146
0.03

76n
2.53411

00,

t'urch.* ofd6& ii rd. {.1
Ch!86 i. iNslori.. of rocl-isn & tUl

Cxr ol i{.r.ri.l Co.r!.d l.l+lbl

% Ctru. frld DBi@ ,{

2,511.61

4.U
2.4fi.51

3@.6t
6.t0

4.5%

7.224.14

-53.39

2,t75.09

2E9.19

?

Crr..r [i.htrt, lbl
!a.. tforttr C.!d.l l.FPl

%Cner. Au! Dratrll y..r

2,!61.01

712.t2

291.6
,6t

-lt.7.

2,5t9.26

t9!.at
169 08

n9.4
1t.07

Tnd. R6.n.bb rrEo.r Rrtio
% Clur. lron Drdi@3 !q .nd

2,863 0t
1t131

3.49

-10.8%

2,519,26

26 61

952

EBIT

Cu.rar Lirbility tbl
Crpltd Eaprord l.l-tu

% Ci.nr. tm nwi@s r,..r

t59 r4
1.008.96

t64.00
028

M0l
432.21

169 0E

46l.ll
029

Itdr,. of$o.l ii trd.

r l.Lr.U.T]r.cR.d.
% Cll.,tre ioo ,.aid y..t ad

1fl1.61
t6227
tr.50
t2.0x

?,22414
t6t.0a
t1.84

n

82 02';(

t0

*



Populr Aoto De.Lrs Privrta Limit(d' Err.hLm
Notas to tha fin8ncial slatenenls (continued)

(All .mounls in I}'{R millions)

35 Cspltal Mrmgemert
The Company's policy is ro maintain a stabl€ capitrat bas€ so as to maintain investor, q€ditor snd market confidedce

and to srrstain future developmcnt of$e business. Managemeni moniton capibl on the basis of tctum on capital

employed as u/€ll as the debt to total equity ratio. For the purpos€ of debt to total equity ratio, dcbt c.nsidelEd is

long-term 8nd sbon-tcf,m borowingt. Totd equity compris€ of issued share clpihl add othar cquity.

As at
3l Merch 20:24

Total .quity ribut bl€ to tlle.quity shsrcholders oflhe
Company

A! . parr.tra.g. of aotal capLal
lrng-tarm borrowingt
Shod-t€rm borrowin8s

Total bonowing!
A! r p.rt ntrgc of total6plt l
Total c.pitsl (equity .!d borowings)

a8.98
64%
8.70

235.73

244.43

360/o

673.41

36 Datau! of Corporrt locLl rBpondblllty qpcrdtturc

Pwsuant !o MCA Notification drtod 22-01.2021, dle detrils of unspent liability towods CSR oblitBlioD! are as

trlow:
Y..randad Y..r crd.d

3l Mrrch 202/ 3l M.rtl 2(}2.!

(l) Gros! amount rcquirEd to be spafi durinS the ye-ar 1.65 1.11

(ii) tu@unt .p[oved by ttrc Board to b. spedt dudng lhe period.,rear 1.65 l.l I
(ili) Amount sp€nt during the year on ;

Cotrsmrction/ acquisition of rsser

On purpo6a! other thrn abov€ L65 I . t I
(iv) (Shortrsll) / Exccss ar th€ ed of$c pcriodryrat

corporate Socd Responsibility
(v) Total ofprevious ycars shortfall
(vi) Details ofrclaEd psrty trarsactioN NA NA
(vii) wlrcre a provision is made widr rBpact to a liability incurnd

by antcring inro a conEactual obligation. $a movemcnts in the

provilion during 0I. pcriod/ycar strouU le stro*rn sepa.atety NA NA

(v i) Rr.son for shortfill: NA NA
(ir) N.ture ofCSR activities:

a) Pxymcnt to kinra miai5er Drioaal r€lieffimd
b) Shll dcvclopm.
c) Education 1.65 l.l1
d) Rur.l dcvclopment

e) Psyment to Eust

Ir puBurnc! of the G€derrl ci culrI No.l,t/202l Md 25.oE.2o21 r€ad wilh lhe cLdicalion by dre lDstiuttE of
Chlrtcrcd Accounturb ofltrdis, CSR cxparBas trising our ofthc obli$aion for the immldiatcly pcardiDg finatlcidl
year b Ecagniscd .3 e,Q€nsc rs ald wlrclt the sadle is incurEd and poYision for lElp€tlt mount to\\'ads CSR

liability nould bc ci€.rd @ly rl lh. .nd oftte year.

37 Previous year figur.s have b€en regloup€d/ reclassifie-d wherover n@essary to conform to curcnt year

presentation

As per our raport dat€ ,.or and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
Populsr Auto Deslers Privrt€ Limited
CIN : U5010 18670

4.8. Com

Ito. t

3l Msrch 2023

338.02

630/o

20.83

r 73.81

t94.64
37vo

532.66

JPlace

Date

Kochi

,6.05.:aD+
DIN 00018827

Director
DIN:00016s13

n


